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igh quality higher educationis crucial for social equi -
ty, economic and social devel opnent and the exis-
tence of a vibrant denocracy and civil society. Wthout
hi gher education produci ng know edgeabl e, conpe-
tent and skilled graduates, research and know edge and
undert aki ng responsi ve know edge-based community ser -
vice, equity, denocracy devel opnent wll all be constrai ned.
The chal | enges of reconstruction, social transfornati on and
devel opnent are trenendous. H gher education nust not
fail inneeting the newpriorities and needs of South Arica

The Qouncil on Hgher Education (GH) is an independent
statutory body established by the Hgher Education Act of
1997. Its nandate is to advise the Mnister of Education on
all matters of higher education so that the system becones
characterised by equity, quéity, responsiveness to econom
ic and socia devel opnent needs, and effective and efficient
provi sion and nanagenent and al so contributes to the pub-
lic good. The GE is a so responsible, through its H gher
Education Quality Committee (HEQD, for quality assur-
ance in higher education.

It has been another busy and eventful year for the GE Apart froma range
of activities related to the advisory and general higher educati on devel op-
nent nandate of the GE the GE has taken inportant further steps in
building a national quality assurance systemfor higher education. Al its
activities are detailed in this fourth Anual Report, which the GE is
required to submt to parliament and covers the period Novenber 2001 to
Qtober 2002. Qrerall, the GE is pleased wth its perfornance and | ooks
forvard to continuing to effectively discharging the inportant and extensive
responsibilities that it has been all ocat ed.

In June 2002, a new nener ship was appoi nted to the GE by the Mnister
of Education for a four-year term | want to extend ny appreciation to the
previous nenbership of the GE and, in particular, the previous



Chai rperson, Prof. Wsenan Ncuhlu, for their trenendous |eadership and
contribution to the work of the GE during the past few years. Through
their wsdom tine and efforts, the GE has over a relatively short period
becone institutionalised in the life and dynamics of higher education and
has made trenendous progress in discharging the nandate and responsi -
bilities that have been accorded to it by the Hgher Education Act of 1997
and the Wiite Paper on higher education.

The new GHE Qouncil began its termwth a workshop at which the chal -
lenges for higher education in genera and for the GHE in particular were
identified, existing coomttees of the GE were restructured or reconsti -
tuted and activities for the coning years were identified and prioritized. In
the short tine in office, the new Guncil has already had to rise to a num
ber of challenges and has advised the Mnister on crucia issues rangi ng
frominstitutional restructuring tothe National Qualifications Franework in
hi gher educati on.

| ook forward to working wth the nenbers of the GE and the Secretari at
to discharge the GE s inportant responsibilities in the coning years and
to working wth all higher education constituencies and stakehol ders to
bui 1 d an equitabl e, responsive and ef fective new hi gher education | andscape
in South Arica
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he Hgher Education Act, No. 101 of 1997, requires the Qouncil on H gher
Educati on (@B to annual |y produce a report on the state of South African
hi gher education and to report on its own activities.

The first GE Annual Report (1998/1999) provi ded an extensive anal ysis of
South African higher education. It reviewed higher education prior to the
denocratic el ections of 1994 and si nce the promul gati on of the Wite Paper
on higher education in 1997, highlighted new trends and devel opnents,
examned progress towards the policy goals enbodied in the Wite Paper,
identified key chall enges and, where appropriate, proposed new directions.
It also reported on devel opnents regarding the G established in My
1998.

In devel oping the second Annual Report (1999/2000) it becane clear that
there were limted new devel opments and insufficient newinfornation and
data to produce another extensive account of higher education in South
Arica As aresut, the second Anual Report concentrated on the activities
of the GEitsdf.

An annual report wth a conprehensi ve account of the state of higher edu-
cation as well as areport on the GE s activities, aternating wth an annu-
a report wth a focus on the activities of the GE alone, seens set to
becone the practice. In this vein the third Anual Report (2000/2001)
reported on the state of South African higher education and the GE This
fourth Annual Report (2001-2002) therefore confines itself to an account of
the activities of the Guncil on Hgher Education and its pernanent com
mttee, the Hgher Education Quality Gormittee for the period Novenber
2001 to Qctober 2002.



ACTIVITIES OF THE COUNCIL ON HIGHER EDUCATION

PART 1

CHAPTER 1

OVERVI EW OF THE GE

1 I NTRODUCTI ON

he Qouncil on Hgher Education (GHE was established as an i ndependent
statutory body in My 1998 in terns of the H gher Edu- cation Act, No 101
of 1997. The H gher Education Act and Educati on Wiite Paper 3 of 1997:
A Programme for the Transfornmati on of H gher Education explicates the
nandate and responsibilities of the GE The Secretariat of the GE began
to be established after June 1999 when the GHE Chief Executive Gficer
took office

The GE defines its nission as contributing to the devel opnent of a hi gher
education system characterised by quality and excell ence, equity, respon-
siveness to econonic and social devel opnent needs and effective and effi -
cient provision, governance and nanagenent. It seeks to nake this contri -
buti on

<)"(‘;> By providing inforned, considered, independent and strategi c advice
on higher education (HD issues to the Mnister of Education;

<):(M Through the quality assurance activities of its sub-commttee, the
H gher Education Quality Comittee (HEQD; and

<)"(‘;> Through publications and broader di ssemnation of infornation, and
conf erences and workshops on HE and other focused activities.

2 MEMBERSH P

he H gher Education Act nakes provision for a chairperson, 13 ordinary
nenbers, co-opted nenbers (nmaxi mum3) and 6 non-voti ng nenbers. The
Mni ster of Education appoints the nenbers of the GE followng a public
cal for nomnations from HE stakeholders and the general public.
Menbers are appointed for a four-year period and the chairperson for five
years.

In My 2002, the termof office of the nenbers of the CGHE appointed in
1998 cane to an end. The Chairperson, Prof. Wserman Nkuhl u, resigned
due to his work pressures as the Econonics Advisor to President Mbeki
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and hisroe as akey actor inthe NewPartnership for Arica s Devel opnent
(NEPAD . The outgoing nenbers of the GHE conprised of the fol | ow ng:

Chairperson
Prof. W Nkuhlu *

Ordinary members

Prof. HP Africa Mr. K Diseko

Ms. N Gordimer Dr. N Magau *
Prof. RH Stumpf * Prof. M Ramashala

Co-opted members
Mrs. M C Keeton

Non-voting members
Dr. RM Adam Ms. N Badsha*
Dr. K Mokhele

Ex-officio
Prof. S. Badat *

Prof. B Figaji * Ms. JA Glennie
Mr. V Nhlapo Prof. N Segal
Mr. SBA Isaacs Ms. A Bird

(* Members serving on the Executive Committee of the CHE)

The Mnistry of Education issued a public call for noninations to the GE
inearly 2002. In June 2002, the GHE was reconstituted with the fol | ow ng

menber shi p.

Chairperson
Mr S Macozoma*

Ordinary members

Dr. HP Africa Prof. SF Coetzee*
Prof. B Figaji* Prof. GJ Gerwel
Adv. MC Hoekstra Mr. J Mamabolo
Mr. E Patel Dr. AM Perez

Prof. SJ Saunders

Ms. T January-McLean T*
Ms. JA Glennie

Mr. V Nhlapo

Prof. MF Ramashala

CHE MEMBERS (from left): Mr S. Macozoma, Dr. H.P. Africa and

Prof. S.F. Coetzee
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Co-opted members
None

Non-voting members

Dr. RM Adam/Dr. B Tema (Department of Arts, Culture, Science and Technology)
Ms. N Badsha* (Department of Education)

Mr. SBA Isaacs (South African Qualification Authority)

Dr. K Mokhele (National Research Foundation)

Vacant (Representative of the Department of Labour)

Vacant (Representative of the Provincial Heads of the Committee of Education)

Ex-officio
Prof. S Badat *

(* Members serving on the Executive Committee of the CHE)

The termof office of the ordinary GE nenbers wll be until June 2006,
and that of the Chairperson until June 2007.

The nenbers of the GHE are appointed in their own right as people wth
specialist knowedge and expertise on HE matters. In this regard, and
despite the nenbers of the GHE being drawn fromvarious constituencies
the GE functions as an independent expert statutory body rather than a
body of delegates or representatives of organisations, institutions or con-
stituenci es

8

CHE MEMBERS (from left): Ms. T. January-McLean, Prof. B. Figaji and
Prof. G.J. Gerwel

iy |

CHE MEMBERS (from left): Ms. JA Glennie, Adv. M.C. Hoekstra and
Mr. J. Mamabolo
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The new Chai rperson, M. Saki Macozoma, thanked the previous GE nmem
bers, who through their wsdom tine and efforts, had ensured that the GE
had over a relatively short period becone institutionalised inthe life and dy-
namcs of higher educati on and had nade trenendous progress in di scharg-
ing the nandat e and responsi bilities that had been accorded to it by the 1997
H gher Education Act and the Wiite Paper on higher education. He added
that an obj ective assessnent of the perfornance of the GHE would indicate
that it had registered truly renarkabl e achi evenents, inits own terns and in
conparison wWth other sinmlar bodies. These achi evenents were in no snal |
neasure due to the intellectual efforts, physical energy and tine that nem
bers had devoted to the GEinits critical first period and the generous guid-
ance, assistance and support they were always ready to provide to the
Secretariat.

Secial thanks were accorded to the past Chairperson, Prof. Wsenan
Ncuhlu, for his calm patient, principled and w se | eadership, gui dance and
supervision. Prof. Ncuhlu was acknow edged for creating a facilitating envi -
ronment for the GE Secretariat to be pro-active totakeinitiaive to gt on
wth the building of an effective and efficient infrastructure and wth dis-
chargi ng the nandate of the GHE and the diverse responsibilities accorded to
it by legislation and the Mnister of Education.

CHE MEMBERS (from left): , Mr. E. Patel, Dr. A.M. Perez and
Prof. M.F. Ramashala

CHE MEMBERS (from left): Prof. S.J. Saunders, Dr. B. Tema and
Ms. N. Badsha



ACTIVITIES OF THE COUNCIL ON HIGHER EDUCATION

3 RESPONSBLITIES G THE GE

he H gher Education Act and the 1997 Education Wite Paper set out the
responsibilities of the GE These incl ude:

N
i
v
”n
i
v
n
3
v

Advising the Mnister on all HE issues on which the GE s advice is
sought ;

Advising the Mnister on its own initiative on HE issues which the
CGE regards as inportant;

Desi gning and i npl enenting a systemfor quality assurance in He and
establ i shing the HEX

Advi sing the Mnister on the appropriate shape and size of the HE sys-
tem including its desired institutional configuration;

Advising the Mnister in particular on the new fundi ng arrangenents
for HE and on | anguage policy in HE

Devel oping a neans for nonitoring and eval uati ng whet her, how to
what extent and wth what consequences the vision, policy goal s and
obj ectives for HE defined in the Wite Paper on HE are being real i sed;
Pronmoting the access of students to HE

Providing advice to the Mnister on the proposed new Education
Managenent I nformation Systemfor HE

Fornul ating advice for the Mnister on a new academc policy for Hg
i ncl uding a di pl ona/ degree structure whi ch woul d advance the policy
obj ectives of the Wite Paper;

Fornul ating advice for the Mnister on stimulating greater institution-
al responsi veness to societal needs, especially those linked to stinu-
lating South Africa s econony, such as greater He-industry partner -
shi ps;

Appoi nting an i ndependent assessnent panel fromwhich the Mnister
is able to appoint assessors to conduct investigations into particul ar
issues at public HE institutions;

Establishing healthy interactions wth HE stakehol ders on the GE s
wor k;

Produci ng an Annual Report on the state of HE for subnission to par -
lianent;

CHE MEMBERS (from left): Mr. S.B.A. Isaacs, Dr. K. Mokhele and
Prof. S. Badat




Gnveni ng an annual consul tative conference of HE stakehol ders;
Participating in the devel opnent of a coherent hunan resource devel -
opnent framework for South Africa in concert wth other organisa-
tioms.

The nunerous and varied responsibilities require the GE to engage i n nany
different forns, kinds and types of activities. The GEis required to be both
reactive and proactive in the rendering of advice to the Mnister. It is dso
required to provi de advice on both a fornal and i nfornal basis. h occasi ons
it has needed to provide advice at short notice and wth consi derabl e speed,
while at other tines it has been rel atively cushi oned frominmedi ate ti ne and
other pressures.

In sumary, the vork of the GE invoves different kinds of activities:

Advi sing the Mnister at his/her request or proactively on al natters
related to higher education;

Assuning executive responsibility for quality assurance wthin
hi gher education and training - including progranme accreditation,
institutional audits, programme eval uation and quality pronotion and
capaci ty buil di ng;

Monitoring and eval uati ng whether and how the vision, policy goal s
and objectives for higher education are being realised; as well as the
extent to which and the consequences of this vision on higher educa-
tion

ntributing to devel opi ng higher education - giving |eadership
around key national and systenic issues, producing publications and
hol di ng conferences and research to sensitise governnent and stake-
hol ders to i rmedi ate and | ong-termchal | enges of higher educati on;
Reporting annual ly to parlianment on higher education; and
Consul ting with stakehol ders around hi gher educati on.

The effective discharge of these responsibilities requires conprehensive
know edge, under st andi ng and experience of the state and condition of HEin
South Africa and a special understandi ng of the broader polity, econony and
society. Especially inportant is to devel op the capacity to rigorously and sen-
sitively nonitor and eval uate the progress that is bei ng nade around HE pol -
icy goals and objectives. It also requires knowedge of devel opnents in HE
el sewhere and thus keep abreast of international trends and devel opnents.
Firdly, it is aso inportant to have an understanding of the public val ue of
He and its crucial role in econonic, social and political transfornati on and
devel opnent in South Africa

he GE is a product of the intense debates around relations between state
and civil society - debates that resulted in a nuner of independent statuto-
ry bodies that are conposed in a simlar way to the GE and have nandat es
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simlar to the GE There was a historical consensus that there was virtue
in having a body, such as the G conposed of persons wth specia know -
edge and experience of higher education and higher education rel ated nat -
ters that are nomnated by a public process, rather than a body of del egates
or representatives of stakehol ders.

The activities of the past three years have been significant in unfolding, &
the level of practice, the institutional character and rde - the identity - d
the GE The GEbelieves that it has three core policy roles - policy advice,
policy devel opment and policy inplenentation. However, the three func-
tions wll vary depending on the issue inval ved.

<f(\;> Policy advice - is the nost enconpassing and principal role of GE
since it has to advise on policy natters both reactively and proactive-

Iy

Jit Policy devel opnent - is linited and depends on issues and condi -
tions - for exanpl e, the work on New Academic Pdlicy; and

<):(> Policy inplementation - this roe pertains exclusively to the quality
assurance and pronoti on (programme accreditation and revi ew irgi -
tutional audits and quality pronotion) function of the GE

The institutional character of the GHE as an independent body is enibod-
iedinthe fdlowng rades:

<)"(‘;> Providing the Mnister, wthout fear and wth courage, inforned, con-
sidered and strategi ¢ advi ce (on request and proactively) which it con-
sidersisinthe nationd interest;

{(@ Miking considered, fair and objective decisions and judgenents
around quality natters; and

<f(‘;> Providing intellectual |eadership around key national and systemc
issues. For exanple, the GE nust certainly take as its point of
departure the values, principles and policy goals of the Wite Paper,
and the policy instruments and nechani sns that are advanced for the
achi evenent of policy goals. Hwever, it nust al so subject, where nec-
essary, these goals and instrunents to critical scrutiny and raise their
appropriateness inrelationto the fiscal environnent, the capacities of
HE institutions, the available human and financial resources and so
fath

These roles will occasionally bring the GE into disagreenents and even
conflict wth stakehol ders, including the Departnent of Education. Sone
stakeholders wll have the perception that the GHE is too close to the
Mnistry of Education. Qhers wll have the perception that the GE favours
public providers over private providers. Inarelatively newand eva ving sys-




tem sone stakehol ders nay seek to lay claimto certain policy donains that
rightly belong to the GE This cannot be avoi ded, without the i ndependence
(and val ue) of the G bei ng conpronised. It does denand trenendous w s-
dom integrity, honesty and fairness on the part of the GE

The CHE has sought to work closely and co-operatively wth stakehol ders
(including the Departnent of Education), to hear their views on a nunber of
i ssues and to be responsive to their concerns and interests. Representatives
of, and participants from national stakehol der organi sations and indivi dual
hi gher education institutions have contributed trenendously to the work of
sone conmttees and activities of the GE A the sane tine, the GE has
tried to accoomodate all invitations and requests from stakehol ders and
individua institutions related to participation in neetings, conferences,
vor kshops, seminars and other activities.

Sone of the views of the GE and its advice to the Mnister of Educati on have
found favour among a | arge nuniber of stakehol ders and institutions but have
left a few dissatisfied Qher views and advice have corresponded with the
views of sone stakehol ders and institutions but not wth those of others. Ye
ot her advi ce has recei ved endorsenent fromonly a few stakehol ders.

Qverall, the GE has not hesitated to provide advice and recommendati ons
to the Mnister that have been at odds wth the views of individua stake-
hol ders or sectors of higher education but which the GE believed to be in
the best interests of the systemat large. This, of course, has not endeared the
GE to stakehol ders all of the tine. SQuch a situation, is to be expected and
shoul d be seen as an outcone of its legislative nandate. Indeed, it is al nost
guaranteed by the nature of the GE

The understanding that the GHE has publicly pronoted through its practice
is that it is not a transmssion belt for the views of stakehol ders.
S akehol ders nust and do communi cate directly wth the Mnister. The GE
isasonot abuffer body, as it has soneti nes been described, in the sense of
nedi ating between institutions and governnent, though if such a role is
required nothing in principle precludes this.

Instead, the understanding that the G-E has pronoted is that it has been
purposively and deliberately established to provide to the Mnister, wthout
fear and wth courage, inforned, considered and i ndependent advice that is
inthe national interest. That is, while the GE nust and does take the vi ewns
of stakehol ders seriously, it is required to do considerably nore than sinply
collate and aggregate these views in advising the Mnister of Education. It is
alsorequired tointerrogate and nedi ate these views, and offer its own inde-
pendent advi ce to the Mnister.

Thus, as an alternative to both the transmission belt and the buffer nodes of
operation, the GE has tried to contribute to a central steering nodel by try-
ing to carve out a space for an independent, proactive and intellectualy



ACTIVITIES OF THE COUNCIL ON HIGHER EDUCATION

engaged type of intervention. This proactive role in putting issues on the
agenda of stakehol ders and stinul ati ng debate seens particul arly necessary
inorder to counteract two relatively generalised tendencies in terns of pal -
icy making and inplenmentation. First, is the tendency on the part of sone
actors to interpret and inplenent policy in highly selective ways, wth the
effect of alnost distorting and undermining the original policy goal. Second,
isthe equally unsatisfactory tendency to formul ate policy wthout giving suf -
ficient consideration to both the conceptual and practical issues that inple-
nentati on woul d rai se.

The last four years have alerted the GE of the need to draw attention to
conceptual aspects of policy when they are overshadowed by concern wth
inplenentation, and to also critique policy if it is lacking conceptual ly or
technically or when inplenentation is insufficient, poor or haphazard. The
steering nodel also inplies another kind of intellectual engagenent - keep-
ing up wth the current international debates on Hg bringing to the fore
i ssues deened relevant to South Africa and stimul ating di scussi on anong
st akehol ders.

The GHE has acknow edged that it does not operate in a vacuum nor does
it have a blank cheque. The GE s activities and advice to the Mnister of
Education are and wll be shaped by a nunier of factors. These incl ude:

<):(» The legislative franework for higher education and the val ues, prin-
ciples and policy goal s and obj ectives contained in the Wite Paper;

<f(‘;> The changing requirenents of econony and society and different
social groups;

<)"(\;> The goals, ains, aspirations and initiatives of national stakehol ders
and higher education institutions and science and technol ogy institu-
tions;

<)"(\;> The local and international know edge and information base wth
respect to higher education issues, questions and practices, and

<f(‘;> The financial and hunan resources capacities of the GE

9 FULFI LLI NG THE MANDATE CGF THE GE

he table below lists the responsibilities of the GE and its progress and
activities to date tovards their fulfil nent.



Responsibility
Advising the Minister
on all HE issues on
which the CHE's
advice is sought

Advising the Minister
on its own initiative
on HE issues which
the CHE regards as
important

Designing and
implementing a
system for quality
assurance in HE and
establishing the
HEQC

Tablel: Progress towards fulfilling the mandate of the CHE

Progress/Activities

Advice on
C HE Amendments Bills of 1999, 2000, 2001 and
2002

C 1999 NSFAS Bill

C Shape and size of HE

C 2002 Regulations for the registration of private
providers of HE

New Academic Policy for HE

Private HE

Redress

Proposed new funding framework

Programme profile of institutions

Ministry' proposals on institutional restructuring

C Private HE

C Institutional redress policy, strategy and funding

C NQF Study team report

C Governance

C Conditions and criteria for the use of the designa-
tions 'university’, 'technikon' etc. and for
offering/awarding degrees and postgraduate qualifi-
cations

Established an Interim HEQC in June 2000

Applied to SAQA and received accreditation as an
ETQA in 2001

Produced Founding Document for HEQC

Called for nominations and constituted a HEQC in 2001
Publicly launched HEQC in May 2001

Established and convened Interim Joint Committee and
manual to pro-cess accreditation of programmes of
public providers (with DoE and SAQA)

Took over from SAQA the accreditation of programmes
of private providers

Conducted evaluation of QPU and SERTEC and pro-
duced publication

Conducted research on QA systems of professional
councils and SETAs and produced publication

Took over from SERTEC and delegated to CTP (with
HEQC participation) until end of 2002 quality assurance
visits to technikons, agricultural colleges and polytech-
nics in neighbouring countries

Produced new draft manual and piloted the accredita-
tion of programmes of private providers

Convened Joint Implementation Plan Committee for
implementation of NQF within HE

Established national forum of quality assurance man-
agers at HE institutions

Commissioned report on quality assurance terminology



Responsibility

Advising the Minister
on the appropriate
shape and size of
the HE system,
including its desired
institutional configu-
ration

Advising the Minister
in particular on the
new funding arrange-
ments for HE

Advising the Minister
in particular on lan-
guage policy in HE

Progress/Activities

Organised numerous conferences, seminars and
training workshops

Extensive and ongoing consultations with all key
stakeholders

Released discussion document on proposed new
accreditation framework

Released discussion document on proposed new
audit framework

Conducted 1 day visits to public and private institu-
tions

Established CHE Task Team

Produced extensive Memorandum and met with the
Minister (December 1999)

Established extended Task Team and produced
Shape and Size report (July 2000)

Extensive engagements with HE institutions and
stakeholders around Shape and Size report
Obtained and analysed stakeholder submissions on
Shape and Size report in preparation for National Plan
Discussions with Minister and DoE around National
Plan

Commented on National Working Group report on
restructuring

Advised on proposed programme mix and niches of
institutions

Advised on the Ministry's restructuring proposals
Established CHE Financing and Funding Task
Team

Advised Minister on weighting of student subsidy and
earmarking funds for Black students for academic
development

Produced draft document on new funding framework
Obtained and analysed stakeholder submissions
Produced final document as advice to the Minister
Awaiting further communication from Minister about
further possible assistance

Established extended Task Team on Institutional
Redress policy, strategy and funding

Discussion held on first and second draft documents
on Institutional Redress policy and strategy

Established CHE Language Policy Task Team
Established extended Language Policy Task Team to
produce report on language policy framework for HE
Discussed and finalised report of extended Language
Policy Task Team

Advice and report to Minister on language policy
Preliminary interaction with Minister around advice
Await full discussion with the Minister



10.

11.

Responsibility
Developing a means
for monitoring and
evaluating whether,
how, to the extent to
which and the con-
sequences the
vision, policy goals
and objectives for
HE defined in the
White Paper on HE
are being realised

Promoting the
access of students to
HE

Providing advice to
the Minister on the

proposed new Edu-
cation Management
Information System
for HE

Formulating advice
for the Minister on a
new academic policy
for HE, including a
diploma/degree
structure which
would advance the
policy objectives of
the White Paper

Formulating advice
for the Minister on
stimulating greater

Progress/Activities
Task Team on Achievement of Policy Objectives
established
Activities of the Task Team suspended due to Shape
and Size activity
Re-established as Project of Secretariat
Project and funding proposal produced and submitted
to donor - initial approval
Meeting held around building a national system of HE
monitoring and evaluation
Annual Report's of 1998/1999 and 2000/2001 provided
as detailed an analysis as feasible of progress towards
policy goals
R 2.4 million funding received from Ford Foundation
towards building a monitoring and evaluation system
Project implementation in late 2002
The Shape and Size report
C motivated increasing the participation rate from
about 15% to 20%.
C called for increased and widened access - especial-
ly for historically disadvantaged
C called for increased support for the NSFAS and
increasing size of grants
Engagements around RPL and monitoring of develop-
ments in this area
CHE decision to commission work on the barriers to
equity of access, opportunity and outcomes in HE
Recommendations made to DoE following
presentation on HEMIS in 1999
Contact with DoE and SAQA regarding their databases
in relation to CHE databases for monitoring and quality
assurance
No formal advice to the Minister as yet

Academic Policy Task Team with representatives
from key constituencies established to undertake work
for DoE

Work suspended for decisions related to shape and
size

Reactivation of work during late 2000

Work of CHE convened Joint Implementation
Committee and |JC fed into work of the Academic
Policy Task Team

Report approved as discussion document by CHE
Report handed over to the DoE in late 2001 for public
comment process and finalisation

Awaiting final document from DoE for advice
Established in 2001 as Project of secretariat

Project and funding proposal produced and submitted
to donor - approved



12.

13.

14.

Responsibility
institutional respon-
siveness to societal
needs, especially
those linked to stimu-
lating South Africa's
economy, such as
greater HE-industry
partnerships

Appointing an inde-
pendent assessment
panel from which the
Minister is able to
appoint assessors to
conduct investiga-
tions into particular
issues at public HE
institutions
Establishing healthy
interactions with HE
stakeholders on the
CHE's work

Producing an Annual
Report on the state
of HE for submission
to parliament

Progress/Activities
Meeting with Minister and discussions with other
government Ministers and departments and prospec-
tive partners
Studies and papers commissioned
National colloquium held on 27-28 June 2002
Publication to be produced
Advice and recommendations to Minister following
national colloquium and discussions with key stake-
holders

An initial panel established in 1998

Panel supplemented with new members during 2000
Panel supplemented with new members during 2001
Minister has utilised panel members for investigations
at a number of institutions

Bilateral meetings with CTP and SAUVCA during
1999

Bilateral meetings with SASCO and CTP during 2000
Bilateral meetings with all national stakeholders dur-
ing 2002

Consultative Conference serves as major forum for
interaction

National stakeholders and individual HE institutions
contribute to the work of the CHE in various ways
Extensive engagements with national stakeholders
and HE institutions around shape and size during
2000

Extensive contact with DoE and joint activities in a
number of areas

Produced an Annual Report 1998/1999 - extensive

report on the state of HE and the work of the CHE

Produced an Annual Report 1999/2000 - focused

largely on the activities of the CHE

Produced an Annual Report 2000/2001- extensive

report on the state of HE and the work of the CHE

Need to develop the basis for producing ever-more

comprehensive and incisive annual reports on the

state of HE

Will be facilitated by:

C CHE Triennial Review of HE Project for which
donor funding has been obtained

C CHE Monitoring the Achievement of Policy
Objectives Project

C Effective HEMIS system



Responsibility

Progress/Activities

15. Convening an annual Convened 1st Consultative conference in
consultative confer- November 1999, 2nd Consultative conference in
ence of HE stake- November 2000 and 3rd Consultative conference in
holders November 2001

16. Participating in the Contributions through attendance of workshops
development of a Informal contributions through HRD discussions in con-
coherent human text of NQF
resource develop- Key issue for Responsiveness of HE colloquium of 27-
ment framework for 28 June 2002
South Africa in con-
cert with other organ-
isations

17. Contributing to the Initiated a range of publications: Policy Reports,

development of HE
through publications
and conferences

Research reports, Occasional Papers, Newsletters and
Kagisano - a HE Discussion Series to stimulate discus-
sion and debate around important issues related to
higher education.

Initiated a CHE Discussion Forum - three held: on '‘Key
Global and International Trends in Higher Education:
Challenges for South Africa and Developing Countries’
(Prof. Philip Altbach); on 'Globalisation, National
Development and Higher Education’ (Prof. Manuel
Castells), and 'A Decade of Higher education Reform in
Argentina’ (Dr. Marcela Mollis)

Querall, wthin the constraints of hunan and financial resources, the na or
task of establishing the GE and HEQC infrastructure and Secretariat, and
various pressures and denands on a fledgling organisation, good progress
has been registered wth respect to the execution of responsibilities during
the past three years.

he GE Chai r and Chi ef Executive Gficer ((BQ net wth the Mnister in My
2002, as required. The My 2002 neeting addres-sed the different views that
appeared to be held by the Mnistry and the G on consul tati on and advi ce.
It vas agreed that ajoint initiative of the Mnistry and the GE woul d devel -
op a Protocol that would focus on the nature, objects and scope of consulta-
tion and advice, their tinming and frequency and any other related issues
deened pertinent. The Protocol would be an inportant step in the institu-
tionalisation of the consultative and advisory rel ati onship and arrangenents
between the GE and the Mnistry.



ACTIVITIES OF THE COUNCIL ON HIGHER EDUCATION

Requests for advice fromthe Mnister of Education

During the past year the Mnister requested the GE to advise himon the
folowng

3

The Mnistry's Draft Policy on the Measurenent of Research Qutputs
for Lhiversities and Techni kons (Requested | ate 2001).

The GHE provided advice in March 2002

The criteria used by the Mnistry to assess the nission and pro-
gramme profiles submtted by higher education institutions in July
2001 (Requested May 2002).

The G provided its advice in June 2002

The Mnistry's proposals for the restructuring of the institutional
| andscape of the hi gher education system as contained in Noti ces 857
to 869 in the Gvernment Gazette (No. 23550) of 24 June 2002 and
elaborated upon in the Mnistry's docunent, Restructuring and
Transformation: A New Institutional Landscape for H gher
Education, gazetted on Friday 21 June 2002 (Qovernnent Gazette
No. 23549) (requested early July 2002).

The GE s advice on the Mnistry's proposed institutional restructur -
ing was delivered in late Septenber 2002

The appropriateness of equalising of the Rand value of the CL cost
unit for universities and technikons in the existing funding formul a
for higher education from 2003/2004 (Requested late Septenber
2002) .

The GE s advice is required by md-Novenber 2002.

The rol e of distance education in the devel opnent of the higher edu-
cation systemand specifically:

The conditions and criteria that should govern the provision of dis-
tance education programmes by traditionally contact institutions
given the concerns raised in the National H an;

The broader rol e of distance education in higher educationin the light
of current and future international trends and the changes in infor -
nation and conmuni cation technol ogy so as to ensure that distance
education is well placed to contribute to the devel opnent and trans-
fornmation of the higher education systemand its role in social and
econom ¢ devel opnent; and

15




The role of a single distance education institution in South Arica, in
particuar, theroethelatter could play in the devel opnent of a "nation-
al network of centres of innovation in course design and devel opnent,
as this woul d enabl e the devel opnent and franchi sing of well- desi gned,
quality and cost - effective | earning resources and courses, building on
the expertise and experience of top quality scholars and educators in
different parts of the country" (Wiite Paper: 2.61) (Requested late
Sept enber 2002) .

The Mnister requested that the GHE s advice be provided by Mrch
2003.

The nonenclature of conprehensive institutions (Requested late
Sept enber 2002) .

The deadline for the G s advice was the end of Noveniber 2002.

The nonencl ature of higher education institutions nore generally
(Requested | ate Septenber 2002).

The GE is schedul ed to advice on this natter in nid-2003.

The criteria to be used to assess the ability of a higher education insti -
tution to offer degrees and postgraduate qualifications (Requested late
Sept enber 2002) .

The GE is schedul ed to advice on this matter in nid-2003.

Proactive Advice to the Mnister of Education

The GE has also sought to provide proactive advice to the Mnister on a
nuniber of i ssues:

3

The GE identified the necessity of investigating the issues of the
nonencl ature of HE institutions and the criteria and nechani sns and
procedures to be used to assess the ability of a higher education insti -
tution to offer degrees and postgraduate qualificati ons. Huwever, dueto
the difficulty of securing appropriate consultants, the investigation only
began in August 2002 (see bel ow, under the report on the Shape and
Sze Sanding Gonmittee). The Mnister's request confirnmed the
inportance of this investigation. The GE has since late 2001 been
investigating the natter of institutional redress policy and strategy.
This advice will be finaised in early 2003.

Dawng on its ' Responsi veness' project (see bel ow under Projects) and
the colloguiumthat it held in late June 2002, the G-E wll advise the
Mnister on the natter of stinulating HE responsi veness to the know -
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edge and person-power needs of the private and public sectors and
the building of strong relationships between HE and these sectors.

d Fourth, the GHE advi sed on the report and proposal s of the Mnister's
National VWrking Goup in March 2002.

e The GHE advised on the report of the Sudy Team on the i npl emen-
tation of the NJF in August 20002.

New subj ects of advice

In addition, the GE has identified newissues that should be the subjects
of advice to the Mnister. These incl ude:

3 Barriers (educational, financia, institutional, etc.) to equity of student
access and especi al |y opportunity and outcones in hi gher education;

b. The push by some countries to define higher education as sinply a
service like any other and their denands on South Africa through the
Worl d Trade Qgani sation; and

9 The nacro inplenentation of institutional restructuring and its
i npact, outcones and consequences.

These issues wll be taken up through the GHE Mnitoring and Triennia
Revi ew proj ects (see Chapter 2, under Prgects).

The practice of nonthly neetings between senior GH staff and senior offi -
cials of the Hgher Education Branch of the Mnistry of Education have con-
tinued and provides an inportant nechani smfor addressing various nat -
tes.
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CHAPTER 2

CHE STANDI NG
COMMI TTHES TASK TEAMS

AND

PRQIECTS

Snce its inception GE activities have been undertaken through Task
Teans and Projects. A GE workshop of its new nenbers in August 2002,
however, decided that three different kinds of structures were necessary for
GE activities - GE Standing Commttees, Task Teans and Prgects.

tanding Cormittees are devoted to key HE policy areas and issues that
require the ongoing attention of the GE The Chair and nenbers of
Sanding Conmittees are appointed by the GE Provision is nade for the
participation of non- GHE nenbers with the approval of the Gouncil. Wiile
Sanding Gommttees are directed and supervised by GE nenbers, the
GE Secretariat handl es their nanagenent and admini stration.

Three Sanding Conmittees have been establ i shed.
H gher Education Legislation

This Sanding Gormittee attends to the preparation, tabling for discussion
and eventual adoption, at the full coomttee neeting of the GE of al GE
advi ce on proposed higher education legislation. Such legislation nay take
the formof new Acts on or related to higher educati on, anendnents to the
existing H gher Education Act and legislation related to higher education
and all higher education regul ations.

During the past year the GE had advised on the Hgher HElucation
Anendnent B Il of 2002 and regulations for the registration of private

provi ders of higher education and traini ng.

The Chair of the Sanding Conmittee is Prof. GJ. Grwel, wth M. J.A
QGennie, Adv. M Hoekstra and Prof. S Badat as nenbers.

Shape and Si ze

The Shape and S ze Sanding Cormittee deals wth the issues of the over-
all capacity (size interns of nunber of institutions, enrol nents and partic-



ipation rate) of the higher education systemin relation to the need to devel -
op the high level and varied intellectua and conceptual know edge, abilities
and skills to neet the local, regional, national and international requirenents
of a devel oping denmocracy. This standing committee also deals wth the
devel opnent of intellectual and conceptual know edge and skills as well as
ongoi ng devel opnent of professionals at different levels, for different eco-
nomc and socia sectors, indifferent fields and disciplines and through dif -
ferent types and kinds of higher education institutions and educational and
pedagogi ¢ nodes (shape) .

The Sanding Cormittee is headed by Ir. K Mkhel e and conprises of the
followng nenbers: M. T January-MlLean, Prof. M FRanashala, M. J.
Mamabol o, Prof. SE (etzee, M. SB.A. |saacs and Prof. S Badat.

During the past year the Sanding Conmittee has provided the background
work to enabl e the GE to advi se on:

The proposals of the National Working Goup, established in Mrch
2001 by the Mnister of Education to 'investigate and advise himon
appropriate arrangenents for consolidating the provision of HE on a
regi onal basis through establishing newinstitutional and organi sation-
a forns, including the feasibility of reducing the nuniber of HE insti -
tuios';

The Mnistry of Education's criteria for the determnation of the pro-
gramme profiles of public higher education institutions;, and

The Mnistry of Education's proposals for the institutional restructur -
ing of higher education.

The advice given to the Mnister of Education is confidential, unless the
Mni ster decides otherwse. The G has applied its mnd to the issues put
toit for consideration and has based its advice on the historical devel opnent
of its own understanding of institutional restructuring and its conmitnent to
ensuring that the higher educati on systemnakes a powerful contribution to
the achievenent of economic and social devel opnent, social justice and
denocracy in South Africa and Southern Africa and Africa.

A key current task of the Sanding Gomittee is to produce a policy report
that wll assist the GEto advise the Mnister of Education on the conditions
and criteria under which (private) higher education institutions nay be
recogni sed as:

Lhiversities or technikons or institutes of technol ogy, etc. axda

Under graduat e degree offering and/ or awarding institutions, and/ or
Postgraduate degree, diplona or certificate offering and/or awardi ng
institutions.

Thisintunwll assist the HHCto fornul ate policy and practice around the
specific accreditation requirenents that institutions need to neet in order to



be pernmitted to provide undergraduate degree programmes or/and post -
graduat e degree, diplona and certificate programmes (as opposed to only
under graduat e certificates and di pl onas).

The rationale for the project is that, increasingly, private higher education
institutions are seeking to offer undergraduate degree progranmes, as wel |
as postgraduate programmes up to the level of the doctoral degree. There
are also private higher education providers that are seeking to use the des-
ignation "university'. In this regard, concerns have been expressed around
the needs to protect and regul ate the use by higher educati on institutions of
the designations 'university', 'technikon, 'institute of techno ogy', etc., ad
ensure that private providers of higher education and trai ning have the req-
uisite capabilities and capacities to offer undergraduat e degree progranmes
and post graduat e degree, diplona and certificate progranmes that 'are not
inferior to standards at a conparabl e public higher education institution
(H gher Education Act, 1997).

The specific ains of the project are to:

3 Identify and anal yse the possible substantive criteria and conditions
interns of which (private) higher education and training institutions
nay be recognised as Llhiversities, Technikons, Institutes of
Technol ogy, etc. and to nmake recomnmendati ons in this regard.

b Identify and anal yse the possibl e processes and procedures in terns
of which (private) higher education and training institutions nay be
recogni sed as Uhiversities, Technikons, Institutes of Technol ogy, €c
and to nake recomnmendations in this regard.

o] Identify and anal yse the possi bl e nechani sns t hr ough whi ch (pri vat €)
higher education and training institutions nmay be recognised as
Lhiversities, Technikons, Institutes of Technol ogy, etc. and to nake
recommendati ons in this regard.

o) Identify and anal yse the possible substantive criteria and conditions
interns of which (private) higher education and training institutions
nay be recogni sed as Uhdergraduat e degree offering and/ or awardi ng
institutions or/and Postgraduate degree, diplona or certificate offer-
ing and/or awarding institutions and to nake recommendati ons in
this regard.

] Identify and anal yse the possibl e processes and procedures in terns
of which (private) higher education and training institutions nay be
recogni sed as Lhdergraduate degree offering and/or awarding institu-
tions or/and Postgraduate degree, diplona or certificate offering
and/or awarding institutions and to nake recommendations in this
regard.



f) Identify and anal yse the possibl e nechani sns through which (private)
higher education and training institutions nay be recognised as
Lhdergraduate degree offering and/or awarding institutions or/and
Postgraduate degree, diplona or certificate offering and/or awarding
institutions and to nake reconmendations in this regard.

The investigation wll:

Qrvey the South African higher education | egislation and policy docu-
nents wth reference to the ains of the project;

Reviewthe literature on higher education policy and practice related to
the usage of the designations 'university' and 'university of technol ogy'
o 'institute of techndogy’ in select countries;

Reviewthe literature on higher education policy and practice related to
the offering of undergraduate degree programmes and postgraduate
degree, diploma and certificate programmes in sel ect countries;

Invite submssions from such organisations as the South African
Lhi versity Vice-Chancel lor's Associ ation, the Gonmittee of Techni kon
Principal s, the Aliance of Private Providers of Education and Training
and Devel opnent, hi gher education institutions, student organisations,
etc. around the ains of the project; and

Interviewsd ect officias, if necessary, fromorganisations such as the
Departnent of Education, the Gouncil on Hgher Education, the South
Arican Lhiversity Vice-Chancellor's Association, the Conmittee of
Techni kon Principads, the Aliance of Private Providers of Education
and Training and Devel opnent, professional councils and SETAs,
hi gher education institutions, student organisations, etc. around the
ains of the proect.

The recommendations that are advanced around the criteria and conditions
that private institutions should satisfy to be permitted recognition as ' uni ver -
sities' and 'technikons' and to be permitted to offer undergraduate degree
programmes and postgraduate degree, diploma and certificate programmes
nust be equitable. That is, public higher education institutions, notwth-
standing their status as 'universities' and 'technikons' and as degree offering
institutions, nust equally neet the criteria and conditions. They shoul d not
apply to private institutions a one.

The CHE hopes to advise the Mnister in nid-2003.
Fundi ng and Fi nanci ng

The CHE Funding and Financing Sanding Cormittee deals with all aspects
of the funding and financing of higher education. The H gher Education Act
and the Wite Paper alocate specific responsibilities to the GE in this
regard, such as advising on "the policies, principles and criteria that shoul d
govern the allocation of public funds anong hi gher education providers', 'a
nechani smfor the allocation of public funds', 'student financial aid, 'policy



regarding public and private financing and provision, the level and distri -
bution of public subsidies to higher education' and 'forns of student finan-
ciad assistance .

Prof. SJ. Saunders chairs the Sanding Cormttee and its nenbers are
Prof. B. Figgi, Prof. M Ramashala, Prof. S Badat and Prof. RH & unpf
(invited non- CHE nenber).

Funding is viened by the National P an as a crucial steering nechani smin
the transformation of the HE systemand in March 2001 the DoE rel eased
its proposed new funding framework for discussion. The GE s advice to
the Mnister was submitted in Gtober 2001 and nade public in early 2002.
The GHE response critical |y anal ysed whether, the extent to which and how
the new funding franework advanced the objectives of the National P an.

Secificd ly:

The achi evenent of increased systemic and institutional efficiencies;
The achi evenent of increased institutional diversity;

The achi evenent of the desired graduate profiles;

The sustai ning and pronotion of research; and

The achi evenent of equity and redress.

The Funding and Financing Sanding Gormittee has al so been invol ved in
initiating and supervising an investigation into institutional redress policy
and strategy as well as the planmning, inplenentation and funding of such a
policy and strategy for the purpose of advising the Mnister in this regard.
The specific ains of the project are to:

nceptual i se the neaning that should be attached to 'institutional

redress' in the context of creating a new He | andscape;

Analyse the place of "institutional redress' paicy inanoveral poicy of

redress and equity;

Analyse institutional redress policy and strategy in the context of pro-

posed nergers between HO's and HO's and HAl's;

Identify and discuss the strategies that could contribute effectively to

institutional redress in the context of creating a new HE | andscape;

Aalyse issues related to financing effective institutional redress

strategies - the duration of strategies; required budgets, possible

sources of finances, etc;

f) Anal yse issues related to the planning and i npl enentati on of redress
strategies and funding - determnation of areas for institutiona
redress; the basis of redress allocations; the required infrastructure;
the nonitoring of inplementation, etc; and

0 Advance speci fi c recomrmendati ons on institutional redress policy and

strategy and its planmning, inplenentation and fundi ng.

o e o o 9w

The Sanding Gommittee has considered two draft reports and the investi -
gation is to be conpleted at the end of 2002, wth the provision of advice to



the Mnister scheduled for early 2003. The Reference group for the investi -
gation includes Prof. Ncondo, Prof. Mbsala and M. Hernan Rhode.

ask Teans are focused on systemic or najor HE policy issues on which the
Mni ster has requested the GE s advice or the GE w shes to provi de advi ce
proactively. They are established according to need. The nenbers of Task
Teans, including the Chair, are appointed by the GE and non- CHE mem
bers may participate wth the approval of the Gouncil. GHE nenbers direct
and supervise Task Teans wth the GE Secretariat responsible for their
nanagenent and admini stration.

Gover nance

As a result of wdespread and increasing concern around |eadership and
nanagenent of public higher education institutions, at the begi nning of 2001
the GHE establ i shed a Task Teamon the governance of HHs. The Task Team
had three nai n obj ecti ves:

To describe and anal yse the state of governance at HHs wth special
focus on the role of councils, senates, institutional foruns and execu-
tive nanagenent and the rel ationshi p between these four structures;
To nonitor the inplenentation, efficacy and the consequences of co-
operative governance at HAs in South Africa; and

To nake recommendations on how to inprove efficiency, effectiveness
and accountability in higher education governance.

The investigation was to be conducted wthin the franework of the princi -
ples, values and goal s defined for higher education in the governnent's vari -
ous policy docunents since the nmid-late 1990s.

Arising out of his oawn concerns, at a neeting wth the GEin My 2001, the
Mnister of Education requested the GHE to advi se hi mon the gover nance of
Ha's by June 2002, giving new urgency to the work of the Task Team

Prof Mrtin Hill of the CGentre for Hgher Education Devel opnent at the
Lhiversity of Gape Town was conmissioned to conduct research under the
supervision of the Task Team The G invited various people fromwthin
and outsi de higher education to also participate inits Task Team The Task
Team suppl enented by non- GE nenbers with expertise in governance,
net as required to discuss and approve the research nethodol ogy and the
draft reports of Prof Hall and his team

The out cones of the work of the Task Teamand consul tants were two docu-
nments: a Research Report, overnance in South African H gher Education,
authored by the consultants and published under the auspices of the GE
and a Pdicy Ryport, Pronoting Good Governance in South African H gher



Education. Instead of receiving the Policy Report, the Mnister of Education
requested the GEto distribute the Policy Report for public cooment, anal -
yse the comments and provide him wth advice. This process wll be
finalised by the end of 2002.

The Research Report, Governance in South African H gher Education, is
based on substantial enpirical research and anal ysis by the consultants. A
representati ve sanpl e of twel ve higher education institutions was careful ly
sel ected and agreed to participate in the investigation. Institutions provided
key docunentation such as the minutes of council neetings that allowed the
consultants to anal yse the actual practices of governance. In addition, site
visits were conducted to interviewa cross-section of neners of the differ-
ent governance structures of the institutions. Thus, field work, analysis of
prinmary docunents, analysis of legislation and policy and docunentary
anal ysi s of the secondary literature on governance was coni ned to produce
a research report that situates the governance of South African higher edu-
cation institutions in the broader contexts of changes in higher education
institutions and the socio-cultural and politico-econonic transformations
dubbed as gl obal i sati on.

The Research Report is organised in five chapters. The first chapter outlines
the terns of reference of the project, and sets its goals wthin a review of
international trends in higher education. The chapter sets out the context of
the changes in governance of higher education institutions that have taken
pl ace over the past two decades. The adoption by governnents of quasi-
nar ket approaches to their higher education sectors, introducing incentive
and performance funding, requiring greater degrees of accountability, seek-
ing cost savings fromthe public sector and encouragi ng the devel opnent of
private education provision, has beenin nany cases, in response to, or have
acconpani ed, significant increases in participation in higher education. A
the sane tine, though, this approach has attracted criticism wth the argu-
nent that it is inconmensurate wth the objectives of teaching, |earning and
research, and that reality is inconsistent wth rational, top-down nodel s of
decision-naking and inplementation. In this context, noving from the
uni queness of its apartheid divisions and through a transfornati on agenda
domnated by social justice, South African higher education is seen as now
show ng i ncreasi ng concordance wth internati onal trends.

Chapter 2 reviews South African higher education policy and |egislation
over the last five years. This policy has centred on the concept of co-opera-
tive governance and a "state steering' nodel of state participation, in which
institutions are granted appropriate | evels of autonony, and acadenic free-
domis guaranteed. Accountability for governance is shared between |ay
nenbers of Gouncil, acting as trustees in the public interest, and profes-
sional acadenmics, taking responsibility for teaching, learning and research
through the Senate. Inorder to give effect to co-operative governance, South
Arican legislation has added a third agency to this traditional nodel, the
Institutional Forum a statutory advi sory coomttee of Quncil.



Chapter 3 noves to governance as it has been experienced on a day-by- day
basis in the twelve institutions selected for the study. Each institution has
been rated against criteria, resulting in four organisational types: "contested
instituions” (self-referentia governance and poorly devel oped systens of del -
egation); "nanagenent-focused institutions" (imard y-focused systens of
governance wth wel |- devel oped capacity for administration and the del ega-
tion of authority); "denmcratic institutions" (broad governance participation
and shal | ow systens of del egation); and "denocratic, well-nanaged institu-
tios'.

Chapter 4 continues the detail ed anal ysis of concrete institutional governance
wth a study of the three najor agencies of governance and their guiding
phi | osophi es: the Senate and the concept of acadenic freedom the Gouncil
and the role of trusteeship, and the Institutional Forum understood wthin
the concept of co-operative governance.

The chapter argues that interpretations of academic freedom and how it
shoul d operate are associated wth differing roles that have been taken by
Senates. An overall feature is that Senates are not functioning as envi saged
incurent paicy, and nost have becone narginalized in institutional gover -
nance.

Qiteriafor the perfornance of the fiduciary roles of Guncils are given by the
1997 Wiite Paper. Veéll-functioning Guncils have lay partici pants who i den-
tify strongy with their institution. The size of a Guncil is inportant, as large
Quncils require a considerable anount of effort in naintai ning cohesion.
Efective Quncils have devel oped systens of del egation, allowng the pl enary
Quncil to neet four or five tines a year to consider high-level policy and
planning and to recei ve consolidated reports on key aspects of the institu-
tion's work and operations. Ve I-functioning Quncils have effective and
active Executive Committees and Audit Gonmittees.

Qnverse attributes are evident in crisis-ridden institutions, where a lack of
boundary definition and defined responsibilities result in continual debates
and di ssensi on about jurisdiction, wth a consequently di mnished attention
to substantive issues. It was found that a large proportion of institutions are
either locked in endenic crisis, or el se face the risk of such crises.

The role of the Institutional Forumis closely bound up with the concept of
co-operative governance. Those institutions that are in crisis have
Institutional Foruns that function nore like earlier Broad Transfornation
Foruns. In contrast, managenent -oriented institutions have follovwed the let -
ter of the policy and legislation and have established Institutional Forums
that function as advisory conmittees to QGouncil, as specified in the Wite
Paper. In these cases, a consequence often seens to be redundancy because
of overlaps between Guncil and Institutional Forum renber shi p.

Despite a genera ly negative viewof the prospects for Institutional Foruns, a



broader interpretation of governance in practice suggests an inportant and
continuing role for them The conbination of a fiduciary Gouncil and an
Institutional Forumwhere policy positions can be devel oped by nandated
representatives offers val ue i n governance through symmetry. |If this paen-
tial in governance is to be realised there wll need to be a strengthening of
the relationship between the Institutional Forumand the Gouncil .

Chapter 5 addresses three issues: the appropriate bal ance between state
steering of largely autononous institutions, and a regine in which the state
exercises direct control inthe public interest; the ways i n which higher edu-
cation institutions should report to the Departnent of Education, and a
generic nodel for governance failure.

It is argued that there is every indication that direct state contro of higher
education is not effective in devel oping countries, and nay be the cause of
acute di sadvantages. In devel opi ng econonies such as South Africa's, poli -
cy is best understood as "conditional autonony”, put in practice through a
web of interrelationships. Avong other factors, these include the account -
ability of public higher education institutions, the status of externa Quncil
nenbers and nodes of institutional reporting. New proposals from the
Departnent of Education, if adopted, coul d renove nany existing anti gui -
ties and strengthen South Africa s systemof conditional autonony.

Wel | -governed i nstitutions share a range of characteristics: Quncils that are
representati ve of the public interest; Senates and Institutional Foruns that
well reflect the range of interests wthin the institution, clear and well-
defined systens of del egated authorities and responsibilities, and adequate
admni strative capacity to ensure that principles can be translated into day-
by- day practice. The generic nodel for governance failure suggests the pos-
sibility of early diagnosis of institutions introudle, alowng for angliorative
neasures to be devel oped.

Froma net hodol ogi cal perspective the research has nade two fundanent al
contributions. On the one hand, in order to render the "lived experience" of
hi gher education institutional governance the researchers devel oped a set of
indicators and benchnarks for the governance practices of institutions.
These indicators are: the degree of representivity of governance structures;
the depth of del egation, and the capacity for inplenentati on that all oned an
institution to turn policies into practice. The research then described and
anal ysed the practices and experiences of institutions in these regards. n
the other hand, the research report proposes a nodel of governance failure
that suggests the possibility of early diagnosis of institutions in troudl e,
alowng for the devel opnent of aneliorative neasures. @nsistent wth
this, the Research Report suggests that well governed institutions will share
a range of characteristics: Quncils that are representative of the public
interest; Senates and Institutional Foruns that reflect well the range of
interests wthin the institutions; clear and well defined systens of authori -
ties and responsibilities, alowng the effective inpl enentation of palicies,



and adequate adninistrative capacity to ensure that principl es can be trans-
lated into day-hby- day practice.

Recommendat i ons

The Pdicy Ryport, Pronoting God Governance in South Africa, draws on
the results of the research undertaken by the consultants. However, & a
Policy Report, it concentrates on advanci ng nunerous recommendations to
i nprove governance at higher education institutions in South Arica. The rec-
omendations are of different kinds and their inplenentation requires
actions fromdifferent conponents of the hi gher educati on system

Recommendat i ons Requi ri ng Amrendment of the H gher Education
Act

A state steering systemof higher educati on governance such as South Africa s
requires that the burden of effective governance is vested in the Quncils of
individual institutions, acting inthe pudlic interest. The Task Team bel i eves
that institutional autonony wll be strengthened if the organisational require-
nents of these Qouncils are huttressed by nore specific regulation of the
vways in which Quncils are constituted. Gven the high incidence of gover -
nance failure, the Task Teambelieves that this shoul d be achi eved by neans
of further anendnents to the H gher Education Act of 1997.

For conveni ence of reporting, recommendations have been grouped.

G oup 1: The conposition and appoi nt nent of nenbers of Gouncil, the min-
i mum Qounci | procedures that are necessary for Gouncils to be able to fulfil
their fiduciary responsibilities, and the standards of fornal reporting
required of Quncils.

C Recommendat i on 8: Rol e and Gonposi tion of Gounci |

The Gouncil is the highest decision-naki ng body of a public higher edu-
cation institution and has fiduciary responsibility for the institution.
Mniers of Guncil act in the best interests of the institution and not
as mandated representatives of their constituencies. Quncils of both
techni kons and uni versities should conprise no nore than 24 nem
bers, of whom at least 60 per cent should be external nenfers.
Institutions should have the | atitude to determine the internal nenbers
of the Quncil via the Institutional Satute, provided that they include
the Vice-Chancel l or, the Gair of the Institutiond Forumat |east one
nenber of Senate and at least one nenber elected by the follow ng
constituencies: the students, the academic staff, and the support staff.
Qher nenbers of the Executive and senior nmanagenent nmay be staff
in attendance at the Quuncil's discretion, wthout voting rights. The
Registrar shoul d serve as the Secretary of Quncil. Institutions shoul d
have the latitude to determine external Qouncil nenbership via the



Institutional Satute. In choosing Guncil's external nenters institu-
tions shoul d take into account their identificationwth and capacity to
contribute to the institution's nission and the broader national devel -
opnent obj ectives as well as their perspectives, expertise, personal
qualities, and their profileinterns of socia equity.

Recommendation 9: Terns of Gfice for External Menbers of Gounci |

The terns of office for external neners of Gouncil should be five
years, wth one fifth of the nenbers retiring each year. External nem
bers of Qouncil should serve not more than two terns. For new
Quncils, al external nenbers should serve an initial three-year
term wth one fifth of the nenbers retiring each year thereafter.

Recommendat i on 10: Appoi ntnent of External Menbers to Counci |

Recommendati on 10 a:

The Mnister of Education has the right to appoint two external nem
bers to the Guncil of every higher education institution froma list of
noninees proposed by the institution. Should the Mnister fail to
express an opi nion on the proposal wthin three nonths, the institu-
tion shoul d proceed with the proposed appoi nt nents.

Recormendati on 10 b:

Nominations as approved by ouncil should be submitted to the
Mnister, together with the institution's statenent of governance as
published in its annual report. The Mnister in turn should confirm
the nomnations taking into account the potential role that nom nees
can play in furthering the transfornation of higher education as stat -
ed innational policy. Should the nomnations not been approved rea-
sons for the rejection as well as suggestions as to how to proceed
should be provided by the Mnister. Shoud the Mnister fail to
express an opi nion on the proposal wthin three nonths, the institu-
tion shoul d proceed with the proposed appoi nt nents.

Recommendation 11: |Inpl ementing Recommendations re Terns of
Gfice and Appointnent of BExternal Mnbers of Qouncil at the
Institutiona Level

In order to inplemnent recomrmendations re terns of office and
appoi ntnent of external nenbers of Gouncil, existing Guncils
should be required to dissolve and reconstitute thensel ves wthin
three years of revisions being nade to the Hgher Educati on Act.

Recommendat i on 12; Meetings of Counci l

Ful | neetings of Guncil should nornal |y be hel d between four and six
tines each year. (ouncil nust ensure that the agenda for Gouncil



neetings is structured so as to support the priorities of the institution
and the fiduciary role of the Guncil.

Recommendati on 13: Conmttees of Council

Bvery Qouncil nust have an Executive Conmttee, an Audit Cormittee
and a Gouncil Nominations Conmittee, and shoul d thereafter have the
authority to establish such coomttees as it deens appropriate for the
effective conduct of its business, as currently allowed in the Hgher
Education Act.

Recommendati on 14: Executive Commttee of Counci l

The Executive Gormittee of Qouncil should be authorised to act on
behal f of Guncil wthin a clear and fornal systemof del egated aut hor -
ities and responsibilities. The Executive Gonrmittee should have no
nore than six neners, while including the Chair of Gouncil as its
Chair, the Deputy Ghair of Gouncil, and the Vice-Chancel | or, and while
nai ntai ning the bal ance of external/internal nenibership applicable to
@unci | as a whol e.

Recommendati on 15: Audit Cormittee of Gouncil

The Audit Cormittee of Qouncil nust be required to act independent -
ly, and in accordance wth generally accepted accounting practices. It
should be snall, conprising only external nentbers of (ouncil, wth
the Vice-Chancel | or and head of internal audit in attendance. The Chair
of Quuncil cannot be chair of the Audit Comttee

Recormendati on 16: Schedul e of Del egati ons

Quncils should establish a schedule of delegated responsibilities,
authorities and accountabilities for each of its conmittees, for the
Chair and Deputy Chair of Qouncil, for the Vice-Chancellor, and for
other senior nenbers of the Executive and nanagenent as appropri -
ate. This schedule of delegations should be fornally adopted as a
noti on of Guncil, should be tabled and reviewed annual |y and, if nec-
essary, revised

Recommendati on 18: Fornal Institutional Reporting

Full, annual institutional reporting that is consistent wth South Arican
General ly Accepted Accounting Practice is essentia to ensure the full
conpliance of @uncils wth their fiduciary responsibilities. The
Departnent of Education should confirmits draft Minual for Annual
Reporting of Techni kons and Lhiversities as a standard requirenent
for al public higher education institutions.



Goup 2: Facilitate a better functioning of the Institutiona For um

C

C

Reconmendati on 19: Scope of the Institutional Forum

Institutional Foruns, as statutory advisory commttees to ouncil,
shoul d be free to discuss any issue of relevance to their institution or
to public higher education in general. They nay debate issues either
at their own volition or at the request fromthe Guncil. The Gouncil
of a higher education institution should be obliged to report to the
Institutiona Forumon the inpl enentation of advice recei ved fromthe
Institutional Forum as it does wth Senate, and should give the rea-
sons for not accepting advi ce given.

Reconmendation 20: Role and (onposition of the Institutional
For um

The Institutional Forumis a statutory advisory committee to the
Quncil. It should engage all stakeholder groups of the institution
and, unlike the Gouncil, shoul d debate nandat ed positions where fea-
sible. Institutions shoud use the discretion of their Institutiond
Satute to ensure a balance in the conposition of the Institutional
Forum between the internal constituencies of Gouncil, Senate, nan-
agenent, acadenic staff, support staff and students. External stake-
hol der groups shoul d be engaged through the Institutional Forum co-
option themto its task teans as appropriate.

Reconmendation 21: Chair of the Institutional Forum

The Ghair of the Institutional Forumshoul d be el ected fromits nem
bership for atermof office as specified by the Satute. Representatives
of GQuncil and the Bxecutive should not be eligible for election as
Chair. On €eection, the Guir of the Institutiona Forum shoul d
becone a nenber of CGouncil .

Recommendations Requiring a Statement of Policy by the
Mni stry

In addition to these fornal changes, the Task Teambelieves that effective
governance Wil be further enhanced by additional |eadership on the part of
the Mnistry, by neans of statenents of policy. In these cases, the burden of
action lies wth individual institutions, interns of the institutional autono-
ny set out in current policy and | egislation.

Recommendation 1: Institutional Satutes

Geater acknow edgenent is due by governnent and institutions of
the significance of Institutional Satutes as a governance device, recog-
nising also that the Mnistry is accountable for ensuring that Satutes



conply with the policy and legislative franework. Public hi gher educa-
tion institutions shoud be required to review and revise their
Institutional Satutes in terns of the Hgher Education Act and its
anendnents, as well as to publish Satutes consolidating anendnent s
fromtine to tine.

Recormendation 2: Building Governance Capacity at Institutional
Level

Participation in governance at institutional level takes place in a variety
of ways, including participation by individuals in their own capacity
(eg. Quncil), and as nandated representatives of a stakehol der group
(eg. Instituiond Forum. Public higher education institutions need to
assess the capacity needs of all those participating in governance and
to devel op approaches for addressing these. In particul ar, nechani sns
should be found for building the capacity of students to play their role
ininstitutional governance.

Recommendati on 3: Revi ew of Rol e and CGonposition of Senate

Senate is accountable to Guncil for the academc and research func-
tions of the public higher education institution. Universities and tech-
ni kons shoul d be encouraged to review the conposition and function-
ing of their Senates, to ensure that they fulfil this rode wth a particu ar
focus on naintaining academc standards and the principle of aca-
denic freedomin teaching and research, and on playing a forward-
looking role in policy formilation, in partnership wth Guncil. This
wll best be achieved where Senate's nenbership ensures the nean-
ingful participation of the professors, the academic staff in general, the
adnmini strative heads of acadenic departnents, and other staff and the
students of the institution as specifiedinthe Hgher Education Act; and
where attention is given to adopting suitabl e nechani sns of del egation
in respect of day-by- day acadenic busi ness.

Recommendati on 5: Remunerati on of Council Menbers

Renunerati on of Gouncil nenbers shoul d be a matter of consideration
for external Qouncil nenbers only and internal renunerated nenbers
of Qouncil should not be further conpensated in any way for Gouncil
service. Renuneration of external Gouncil nenbers shoul d be based
on a systemthat acknow edges the economc val ue of the tine given by
lay nenbers of Gouncil to the governing body. Renuneration shoul d
constitute a nodest sumto cover attendance at all Qouncil neetings,
i ncluding extraordinary and cormittee neetings.



ACTIVITIES OF THE COUNCIL ON HIGHER EDUCATION
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Recommendati on 6: Nature of Rermuneration of External Menbers of
Gounci |

Paynent of Gouncil neners in kind (such as atuition rebate or "staff
fee" for family nenbers of Gouncillors) should not be allowed as it
constitutes a potential conflict of interest, and is an unevenly dis-
tributed benefit.

Recommendation 7: Transparency of Renuneration of External
Menbers of Counci l

Rermuneration of uncillors should be wholly transparent, and
details of paynents should formpart of the institution' s audited finan-
cia statenents.

Recommendati on 17: Transparency of Gouncil Business

Quncil should give attention to ensuring a process for appropriate
transparency of Qouncil decisions. The Chair of Gouncil shoul d have
the discretionary authority to designate natters confidential to

Counci | nenbers.

Recomrendat i ons Requiring Action by the CHE

Firdly, the Task Teambelieves that the G can play a direct role in pro-
noti ng effective governance in hi gher educati on:

C

Recommendat i on 4: Devel opi ng Trust eeshi p

The Gouncil on H gher Education shoul d pronote the devel opnent of
trusteeship in the governance of public higher education institutions

by:

Initiating a discussion wth the Mnistry of Education regarding pub-
lication of guidelines for the responsibilities of those undertaking
fiduciary rdes;

Initiating a discussion with the Mnistry of Education regardi ng estab-
lishing procedures for dealing wth failures in trustee responsibility;
Initiating consideration of howto devel op resources for externa nem
bers of university and techni kon Qouncils, such that these woul d con-
tribute to sustainabl e fiduciary capacity in the public higher education
system

Recommendation 22: Pronoting God Governance in the Public
H gher Education System

Inthe light of devel opnents in the higher education sector subsequent
to the Wiite Paper and Hgher Education Act of 1997, the GE
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shoul d renew and pronote debate on the vision and principles that
underlie the current policy and legislative franework for higher educa-
tion governance in South Africa

C Recommendat i on 23: Gode of Governance for Public H gher Education
Institutions

onsi deration should be given to the establishnent of a Gode of
Governance to be adopted and appropriately applied by public higher
education institutions. In the first instance, the GE should pronote
debate on this issue with both governnent and educational institutions.

The inportance of the issue of governance for the successful transfor-
nation of higher education institutions in general and the governance
issues raised by the restructuring of higher education institutions in
particular, have indicated the need to extend the GE s work on gover -
nance. The GE has therefore initiated a second phase of work on gov-
ernance which will begin in Qtober 2002 and incl ude feedback work-
shops wth the twelve institutions that participated in the governance
i nvestigation, the devel opnent of perfornance indicators for the GE
Monitoring Project, the devel opnent of a code of good governance and
resear ch on governance chal | enges, structures and procedures in nerg-
ing institutions. Wereas the Ford Foundati on and the WK Depart nent
for International Devel opnent funded the governance investigation, the
Mnistry of Education wll support the new work through a UWSAD
gant.

With the conpl etion of its work, the Governance Task has been di ses-
tablished. The areas of further work that have been identified wil be
undertaken as a GE proj ect.

QG her Task Teams

Two other Task Teans, on Academc Policy and Language Pdicy, were a so
di sest abl i shed.

The Acadenic Pdicy Task Team which included representatives of the key
nati onal stakehol ders, conpleted its work in late 2001. The QHe- approved
report on new Acadenic Policy was handed over to the DbE in late 2001 and
subsequently released by the DbE as a public discussion docunent in
January 2002. The GE now awaits a policy docunent from the DoE on
which it wil advise the Mnister of Education.

The advi ce of the GHE Language Pdicy Task Teamwas approved by the GE
and subnitted to the Mnister of Education in nid-2001. The GHE awaits a
fornal response to its advice.



ssues that are not related to the i nmediate policy advice responsibilities of
the GE are, with the approval and guidance of the GE directed, super-
vised and nanaged by the GE Secretariat as Projects. These incl ude:

Research and investigations that give effect to and/or inform the
diverse work of the G- The results of these may, followng discus-
sion by the Quncil, lead to advice to the Mnister;

The annual (onsul tative onference;

GHE conferences and di scussi on foruns;

G publications and other nedia;, and

The production of the Annual Report to parlianent.

The projects of the G seek to give effect to the responsibilities that have
been accorded to the GE The requirenent to contribute to the devel op-
nent of hi gher education provides considerabl e | eeway for the GE to iden-
tify systemic and national HE issues that deserve critica reflection and to
initiate proects in this regard. The privileged vantage point that the GE
enjoys Wth respect to national He and He-rel ated devel opnents al so facil -
itates identifying issues for investigation.

The GHE is convinced that its own ability to provide considered, indepen-
dent and especi al |y proactive advi ce i s dependent on pronoting and hel pi ng
to sustain high quality critical scholarship on South Arican HE and HE in
general. Inthe South African context this requires encouragi ng and hel pi ng
to develop and nurture a coomunity of HE scholars and policy analysts
wthin and outside HE institutions. Through a nunber of its projects - non-
itoring and eval uation, critica triemnia reviewof HE theroe of HEin socia
transfornation to nention just a few- the GHE seeks to invol ve establ i shed
and energi ng academcs and researchers and contribute to building insti-
tutional capacity for HE studies.

Bui I ding Rel ationships between H gher Education and the Private
and Public Sectors to respond to Know edge and H gh-Level Hunan
Resource Needs in the context of Inequality and Unenpl oynent.

The purpose of the 'responsiveness' project was to give effect to the GE s
statutory responsibility 'to fornulate advice to the Mnister on stinulating
greater institutional responsiveness to societal needs, especially those
linked to stinulating the South Africa s econony such as greater higher edu-
cation-industry partnerships'.

The proj ect ai ned to understand | abour narket needs, the fit between grad-
uates' skills, conpetencies and attributes and enpl oyers needs while
review ng the theoretical and nethodol ogi cal approaches that underpin the
issue of responsiveness. In addition, the project was intended to bring



together |eaders of higher education and | eaders fromthe private and public
sector and |abour unions to talk about expectations, needs, and, especially,
the possibility of relationships that were not only beneficia for higher educa-
tion and enpl oyers, but al so appropriate for the economic and social needs
of the country.

Followng a lengthy period of planning and organising, representatives of
hi gher education institutions, business and governnent of ficial s cane togeth-
er in a colloguiumheld on 27-28 of June 2002 at the Sandton Convention
CGentre. The Mnisters of Education, Trade and Industry and Arts, Qulture,
Sci ence and Technol ogy addressed participants on different aspects of the
rel ationshi p between hi gher education and enpl oyers of high-level skills.

dnce the interest of the GE was to encourage dial ogue, a col | oqui umwas
chosen as the appropriate format. The dialogue was supported by five
research papers commssioned by the QHE, which discussed different
aspects of the rel ation between educati on and the | abour narket, higher edu-
cation and enpl oyers, and higher education and industry.

D scussion at the colloguiumcentred on the fol | ow ng i ssues:
Rel ations between | abour market and hi gher education

There was a high level of dysfunctionality between the outputs of education
and the denands of the labour nmarket, a situation that could be seen from
the failure of higher education graduates to obtai n enpl oynent. This was the
direct consequence of the 'poor' and 'irrel evant' education that hi gher educa-
tioninstitutions were providing.

Lhenpl oynent anong hi gher educati on graduates neans that institutions of
hi gher learning were not neeting students' expectations. This had the effect
of lowering the denand for higher educati on because potential students did
not think that higher education would guarantee their absorption into the
| abour narket. Non-absorption of graduates in the l|abour narket was
attributed to the poor quality of the progranmes offered at private and pub-
licinstitutions of higher education. The solution to this problemlay in part
in curriculumchange and in the devel opnent of graduates.

Qontextual changes affecting the rel ationshi p between hi gher edu-
cation and busi ness

It was necessary to distinguish between issues of context wthin higher edu-
cation and those of a nore general nature. Awong the forner was the
i npendi ng restructuring of the HE system which was pointed out as the 'sin-
g e nost inportant issue', and the international trends of prinacy of the nar -
ket and the commodification of education. Among the broader contextual
i ssues, participants nentioned the inpact of new technol ogies, the govern-
nent' s nacro-econonic franework and the chal | enge of job creation that was



inplied in governnent's Gowh, Equity and Redistribution (AR strate-
oy. Qher contextual factors such as the sectoral conposition of services -
the change fromprinary to tertiary services; and the concomtant need for
nore skilled labour; were also referred to. The view was expressed that
business itself was not fully cognizant of these changes nor was it able to
respond to these adequately. These contextual changes called for a new
franmework within which the relationship between HE and busi ness had to
be const ruct ed.

Know edge and the research probl em

There is a need to envision teaching and research in new ways in order to
produce a new research community and to define the nature of the research
problemdifferently. The country faces new soci o-economic chal | enges and
R8D capacity had to be devel oped in the context of the post -aparthei d econ-
omy, unenpl oynent, poverty, the rapid changes i n the communi cation tech-
nol ogy environnent and in gl obal econonic relations, etc.

A the sane tine, it is critica to expand the research conmunity and 'intel -
lectua capital' nore generally. For national developnent it is extrenely
inportant to sustain, renew and expand nati onal research capability. There
is still a considerable backlog in the production of a new and diverse
research communi ty because of the | egacy of aparthei d on the devel opnent
of such a conmunity.

It is necessary to develop a 'sustained conversation' between partners in
research and know edge production through the idea of enlightened self-
interest, and governnent incentives.

Part nershi ps between HE and busi ness

It is wdely accepted that partnerships are both necessary and unavoi dabl e
to enhance the rel ationshi p between HE and busi ness and that these part -
nerships required a coomtnent on all sides. In particular, there are df -
ferent roles to be played by nenbers of the partnership. nversations
about the relationship can only be constructive if HE and busi ness are not
posited as opposites and if both parties could transcend 'the vocabul ary of
condemrmation' to construct a sound relationship. There were converging
interests and enphasizing differences was not useful. There is a need for
conti nued dial ogue to explore how HE and the economic actors could be
brought cl oser together to develop a mutually reinforcing rel ationship. This
relationship has to be nore than a formal one and had to becone a sub-
stantive one. The partnership has to be vol untary, based on nutual interest
and has to evince intel lectual integrity.

The rel ationship between HE and busi ness has to understand the different
"cultures of institutions' and be based on common purposes and national |y
agreed obj ectives, such as:



To encourage sci ence, naths and technol ogy;

To inprove retention and throughput rates;

Srategic long-termpartnerships for national devel opnent;

Regi onal economi ¢ devel opnent ;

A focus on snmal | conpani es;

Sharing responsi bilities to devel op continuous di al ogue for specific out -
cones to enhance enlightened sel f-interest; and

C The need for both HE and business to nobilize greater resources for
institutional [including curricul unj change.
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The rel ati onshi p coul d al so enhance the i nportance of interdisciplinary stud-
ies and nake it possible for natural science students in particular to under -
stand the socia context of their knowedge better. It is inportant to think of
inter-disciplinarity especially at the postgraduate studies |evel.

The partnership between HE and business should not be a process to
"takeover' and silence the voices of 'critical' acadenmics. Snilarly, sdective
part nershi ps based on historical and racia relationships and socia and cul -
tural networks has to be replaced by relationships based on a new deno-
cratic franmework.

The deliberations at the G- col | oqui umindi cated that the actors that need-
ed to cone together in building strong, healthy and durable relati onships
bet ween hi gher education and the public and private sectors operate in par -
ticular spaces, often have particul ar preoccupati ons and nay work accordi ng
to different rhythns.

In terns of the higher education system representatives agreed on the fol -
[ ow ng points:

1 That the key functions of higher education institutions today are the
production and di ssenination of know edge and the induction of |earn-
ers into know edge, skills and conpetencies that ensures that they are
equi pped to be econonical |y and socially productive as well as critical
and denocratic citizens.

2 That unl ess higher education institutions are organised to undertake
these functions effectivedy and efficiently and wth close attention to
equity and quality, they are unlikely to be innovative, dynanic and
responsive institutions. This wll inhibit their ability to nake a power -
fu and critical contribution to the economic, social, cutural and intel -
lectual devel opnent of South Arica

3 That the national chall enge of the reconstruction and transfornati on of
the econony and soci ety requires responsi ve higher education institu-
tiars.

It was also wdely acknow edged that if there was no fundanental renewal,
reconstruction and transformation, the functions that are today played by
hi gher education institutions, and especially public higher education institu-



tions, would be increasingly undertaken by other know edge producing
institutions as well as private institutions.

The private and public sectors clearly have their own transfornati on chal -
 enges. These include the present pattern of ownership of productive assets,
the racial and gender conposition of high and nidd e-level occupations, job
creation, reduction of inequalities and poverty, effective ad efficiet ddiv-
ey of services, sociad security and generaly creating a better life for al.

Just as wth higher education institutions, the | egacy of the past continues
to nanifest itself in the private and public sectors. If there were concerns
about the institutional cultures of various higher education institutions,
concerns coul d equal |y be raised about the institutional cultures of private
and public sector organisations.

Qe of the points that both the research commissioned by the G and the
di scussion during the coll oquiumnade anply clear is that it was unlikely
that there would ever be a congruence between the outputs of higher edu-
cation in terns of graduates and the i nmedi ate and specific needs of pub-
lic and private sector enpl oyers. Inthis regard, if higher education institu-
tions had to becone | earni ng organi sati ons, private busi nesses, parastatal s,
publ i ¢ organi sati ons and governnent departnents needed to becone nen-
toring organisations or they would not retain staff wth great potentia or
experti se.

The col | oqui umbrought to the fore a series of future tasks and activities.

9 Investigating the extent, nature and forns of partnerships between
hi gher education institutions and the private and public sectors.

b Devel oping a principled relationship between higher education and
the private and public sectors at the national level. The basis, nature
and formof this relationship, the projects that coul d be undertaken
jointly and indicators of its progress, would need to be defined.

0 Regional interactions as well as individual interactions between a
hi gher education institution and relevant private and public sector
bodi es coul d be effective in yiel ding concrete benefits to both sectors.

These suggestions have been incorporated into the advice that the Gouncil
on Hgher Education has provided to the Mnister of Education. The tasks
defined, however, nay not necessarily be undertaken by the GE since they
nay be nore appropriately taken up by other bodies or by other bodi es and
the G toget her.

The full report on the @l oqui umproceedings is avail abl e on the GE web-
Ste

The responsi veness project was generously supported by Ofi D and the Ford
Foundati on. The Standard Bank nade a contribution to the col | oqui um



Bui I ding a Mnitoring and Eval uati on Systemfor South African
HE

The GE is required to nonitor and eval uate whether, how to what externt
and wth what consequences the vision, policy goal s and obj ectives for HE are
bei ng real i sed.

The Wiite Paper specifically refers to advising the Mnister of Education on:

The perfornance of the system having regard to avail abl e perfor mance
i ndi cators

The progress bei ng nade towards achi eving national equity and hunan
resource devel opnent goals and neasures to overcone inpedinents
to achieving transfornation goals (Wite Paper 325 i, j).

In 2001 the GE submtted a proposal for funding to the Ford Foundati on
focused on the developnent of a system to nonitor and evaluate the
achi everent of hi gher education policy objectives.

The proposal nmade a clear distinction between nonitoring and eval uation,
selecting for nonitoring the size and social conposition of the HE system
qual ity and responsi veness and efficacy, and leaving for eva uation specific
areas thrown up by the results of nonitoring.

Snce the proposal was devel oped the Mnistry of Education released the
National P an on Hgher Education and its proposals for the restructuring
of the higher education landscape. In addition, the work of the HEQX has
expanded i nto new areas.

The inpl enentation of HE transfornati on has been given newinpetus wth
the release of the National Han and the Mnistry's restructuring proposa s.
Fromthe point of viewof the nonitoring project this necessitates reconcep-
tualising the scope of the origina prgect tobringit inline wth the newpri -
orities and the new areas of work of the HEKC

The overall aimof the project is to nonitor and eval uate how to what extent
and wth what consequences national higher education policy goals and
obj ectives have been achieved and restructuring and transfornati on have
been i npl enented. The project is particularly interested inthe analysis of the
achi evenent of policy targets taking i nto account neans, processes and insti -
tutional culture in a dynanic soci o-economc context.

In view of the recent devel opnents in higher education policy the GE pro-
ject wll have to address two distinct, though interrelated, areas of higher
education reform - higher education restructuring and higher education
transfornation - as conponents of the same project. The nonitoring of
restructuring wll focus on the inpl enentation of nergers and other forns of
institutional restructuring. The nonitoring of transfornation wll focus on
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the achi evenent of the transfornation goal s defined inthe National Han for
H gher Educati on.

The GE views effective nonitoring and eval uation as tools to strengthen
social justice and democracy, and as crucial for ongoing dialogue and
engagenent towards social justice and denocracy. Akey theoretica consid-
erations that inforns this project is the recognition that the nonitoring and
evaluation of social policy (in this case higher education) cannot be done
separately from an analysis of the broader social trends and processes
whi ch constitute the conditions wthin which policy goals are pursued and
i npl enentation takes place and which inevitably accel erate, halt, or derail
them In other words, a systemof nonitoring and eval uation is required
that includes conpl ex socia analysis, ethnographic studies and interdisci-
plinary approaches and not nerely the constructi on of perfornance indica-
tors and quantitative data

Triennial Review of HE
The triennial reviewproject is to enable the GE to:

<5‘)(> Anal yse and crystallise the key trends wthin South Arican and inter -

national HE
Jit  Analyse and identify the najor challenges that confront South African
HE, and

Jit  Proactively identify issues and areas that reguire further investigation
for the purposes of advice to the Mnister of Education.

The process of producing a triennial Review of H gher Educationis intend-
ed to have sone inportant devel opnental effects:

<5‘)‘1> Identifying and commissioni ng schol ars and policy anal ysts to under -
take research for the triennial Revieww || hel p to devel op a conmu-
nity of critica He analysts; and

‘ﬁ,(’ Attachi ng especi al |y young bl ack and woren schol ars and post gr adu-
ate Misters and Doctoral students to the schol ars and policy anal ysts
that are conmissioned wll ensure that the present rather snall com
nmunity of HE anal ysts is expanded and al so becones nore represen-
tative interns of 'race’ and gender.

The Rockerfeller Foundation has provided a grant of R1.6 mllion for this
proj ect.

HE and Social Transfornation

The general aimof the project is to understand the roles played by HE in
radical or large-scal e social, economic and political change through a num
ber of country case studies, including South Arica. The Gentre for H gher
Educati on Research and Infornation at the British Qoen Lhiversity and the
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Associ ation of Gormonweal th Uhiversities spearhead the project interna-
tional |y and have nade about funds available for the South African investiga-
tin

A National Wrking Goup that supervises the South African research has
net twce to conceptualise the research and consider a first draft report of
appoi nted consultants. However, work has been del ayed due to a new con-
sultant having to be appoi nted nd-way through the project.

Revi ew of the NQF

As a result of wdespread and strong concerns anong sone hational HE
stakehol ders, HE institutions, and adninistrators and academcs around the
NF and its inplenentation in the HE and trai ning sector, a report was com
nmssioned by the GEin 2001 to assist it to:

Advise the Mnister of Education on the devel opnent of the National
Qualifications Franework (NJ) and its inplenentation in relation to
the HE band;

Make an inforned and consi dered subnission to the NF Sudy Team
that was established by the Mnisters of Education and Labour to
undertake ' a focused study of the devel opnent of the National
Qualifications Framework (NGgF)';

Dscharge its ETQA responsibilities in an effective and efficient way
(through the HEQD; and

Gontribute to constructive debate around the NF and its inpl enent a-
tionin the HE sector.

The report, considered by the GE just prior to the release of the report of
the NF Sudy Teamon the Inplenentation of the National Qualifications
Framework, was not further devel oped by the GHE as a Policy Advice Report.
Instead it was decided that the report would be drawn upon to informthe
GE s response to the Sudy Team Report. The CHE responded ext ensively
to the Sudy Team Report in August 2002.



CHAPTER 3

O'HER ACTIM TIES G- THE

CHE

rd Annual Consultative Conference of the GE

The 3rd Annual Gonsultative Qonference of the GHE was held on 29-30
Novenfber 2001. It is required in terns of the Wiite Paper and serves as a
nechani sm for the exchange of ideas between HE stakehol ders and the
GE and for the identification of key chal l enges. About 100 peopl e attend-
ed the conference.

The nsul tative Gonference sought to engage critically around the respon-
siveness of higher education, wth specia respect to econommc gronth and
devel opnent, civil society and denocracy and intellectual production and
di scourse. Henary sessions and commssions wth group di scussions were
held on 'The New Partnership for Africa's Developnent and H gher
Education', the 'Challenges and Linitations of Entrepreneuria H gher
Education', 'A New ontract between Hgher Education and Society' and
"Hgher Education between HEducation and Training Paradoxes and
(hal | enges for the Qurricul um.

Gonmissi ons were requested to engage around the fol | ow ng questi ons:

Do the existing policy instrunents such as national planning, the pro-
posed new funding dispensation and quality assurance hel p hi gher
education to be/ becone nore responsi ve?

Wat are the necessary conditions to facilitate higher education
bei ng/ becom ng nore responsi ve?

Wat are the roles of different constituencies in ensuring higher edu-
cation responsi veness?

How can one nmonitor and eval uate and review the extent to which
hi gher education institutions are bei ng/ beconing responsi ve?

A critica evaluation of the outcones and organisation of the first three
Qnsultative nferences has revealed that although the tabling of the
Annual Report was neant to provide a franmework for the consultative
di nensi on of the conferences, this has not fully naterialised. Further, wile
the thenes of conferences were relevant and papers presented in the com
missions were of good quality, there was insufficient tine for the conmis-



sions to discuss and engage seriously wth the issues. Firdly, there have been
declining level s of participation by stakehol ders.

This points to the need to restructure the 4th Gonsultati ve Gonference. The
GE has decided that in order to ensure higher attendance the Gonsultative
nference, it should not be restricted to stakehol der bodi es, specia guests
and the donor community but should al so be opened to peopl e who want to
attend. At the sane tine, the structure of the conference shoul d be changed
in such a way that the work of the conmissions and the actual consultative
aspect of the conference take priority over the tabling of the Annual Report
and the reporting of the GHE and HEQC

CHE D scussion Forum

In accordance wth its nandate to contribute to the devel opnent of He
through conferences, a GHE Di scussi on For umwas hel d for hi gher education
| eaders, policy-nakers and researchers on 23 Septenber 2002 at the
Lhiversity of Pretoria s Goenkl oof Canpus. The subject of the forumwas 'A
decade of higher education reformin Argentina . The forumwas addressed
by Or Mrcela Mllis, DOrector of the Research Programme on Conparative
Hgher Education at the Research Institute of Education at the School of
Phil osophy and Literature, at the Lhiversity of Buenos Aires, Argentina. Dr
Mllisis afull professor of Gonparative Education and Hstory of Education
as vwell as a former Ford Foundation and Japan Foundation fellowin the field
of onparative Hstory in Hgher Education. She is author of a nunber of
publications in the field of conparative education both in English and
Spani sh.

This third GHE D scussion Forumfoll ons previous ones on 'Key Gobal and
International Trends in Hgher Education: (hallenges for South Africa and
Devel oping Qountries' (wth Prof. Philip Atbach) and on 'Gobalisation,
Nati onal Devel opnent and H gher Education' (with Prof. Mnuel Gistells).

n accordance wth its nandate to contribute to the devel opnrent of He
through publications, the GE and HEX produce a range of publications -
Research Reports, Policy Reports, Policy Advice Reports, Policy Docunents,
O scussi on Docurents, (ccasional Papers, onference Reports, Newsletters,
Kagi sano, the GE s H gher Education O scussion Series and O gani sati onal
Brochures. In addition, when necessary, the G al so issues Press Rel eases.

The fol | ow ng publications were produced during the past year:

Resear ch Report
Gvernance in South African H gher Education
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<):(> Pol i cy Report
Pronoting God Governance in South African H gher Education

Jit  Policy Advice Report
GE Advice to the Mnister of Education: The Proposed New H gher
Education Funding Franework of the Mnistry of Education and its
Inplications for the Reconfiguration of Hgher Education

Jit  CQccasional Papers
No: 1 - Human Resource Devel oprent and H gher Education
Hanning: Inportant National and Gontinental Initiatives

Jit Discussion Documents
A New Acadenic Policy for Hgher Education
Programme Accreditati on Framewor k
Institutional Audit Framewor k

Jit  Kagi sano
Rei nserting the Public God into H gher Education Transfornation

Jit  Annual Reports
GE Annual Report 2000-2001: The Sate of Hgher Education in
South Arica

‘ﬁ(’ QO gani sati onal Brochures
Qual ity Assurance in H gher Education: The H gher Education Quality
Comittee

Jit Press Rel eases
Meeti ng between the Gouncil on H gher Education and the Mnister of
Education on the Mnistry's Hgher Education Restructuring
Proposal s;

The CGE Glloquium Building Relationships between H gher
Education and the Private and Public Sectors and Gontributing to
their Hgh-Level Personpower and Know edge Needs; and

The New Menbership of the Gouncil on Hgher Education (2002-
2006) .

Aconplete list of all GE publications since its inceptionis to be found at
the back of this report under 'GE Mdia. The GE website -
http://ww che ac.za - provides el ectronic versions of all CHE publications.
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here were also a nunber of additional activities. These incl uded:
B lateral neetings wth stakehol ders

Meetings were held during the past year wth all the key national HE
stakehol ders - SAUVCA, CIR APPETD, NUTESA, NTESU SATSU
SAUSRC, NASDEV.

The GE also nmet wth the Portfolio Coomttee on HEducation
(National Assenbly) on 17 Septenber 2002 to fornally present the
G Anual Report for 2000- 2001 and di scuss critical chall enges fac-
ing South African higher education.

Participation in the Comittee of Heads of Research and
Technol ogy ( COHORT)

The CGHE is an active nenber of OOHCRT, a forumthat regularly
brings together all the heads of science and research councils and,
nore recently, national higher education organisations (GE H gher
Education Branch of the DoE SAWMCA and CTP) and the Mnistry of
Ats, Qilture, Science and Technol ogy to discuss matters of science
and technol ogy policy and devel opnent and strategi es for addressing
challenges in these regards. The GHt (EO serves on the Executive
Comm ttee of COHORT.

External conferences, semnars and wor kshops

The Chief Executive Gficer ((EQ of the GFE the HEQX Executive
Orector (ED and other senior staff of the G- and HEQC addr essed
and represented the G at, nunerous regional, national and inter-
national seminars, workshops and conferences of stakehol ders, He
and HE-rel ated organi sations, and HE institutions.

The GE CEO del i vered keynot e addresses at the conferences of NAS-
DEV, NUTESA and the Psychol ogy Society of South Africa (PSYSHY.

The CHE CEQ the HEQC ED and the GE Project nanager all par -
ticipated as guest lecturers in the new Misters programme in H gher
Education Pdicy, Mnagenent and Administration offered by the
Lhi versity of Wstern Gape.
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CHAPTER 4

ORGANI SATI ON AND
STRUCTURE O THE CHE

1  ORGANI SATI ON

he GE conprises of the uncil, an Executive Comrmittee, and a
Secretariat headed by the CEQ

During the past year, the Quncil of the GE net about every two nonths
and the EXQO net alnost nonthly. As noted, a new nenbership was
appoi nted to the GHE in June 2002 and a speci al |nduction Wrkshop was
held in early August for the new Gouncil. GHE Sanding Cormittees, Task
Teans and Projects have net as required.

In My 2002, the GE relocated fromthe Sol Faatje Building, wichis the
hone of the Departnent of Education, and noved to its own offices in
Cdacta Building, a public building at 211 SKinner Sreet, Pretoria The
GE shares the Odacta Building wth two other statutory bodies, the
Foundati on for Education, Science and Technol ogy (FEST) and the National
Advi sory Gouncil on Innovation (NAQ), which provides scope for co-opera-
tion in a nuner of areas.

The nove required the GHE to nake maj or investnents in infornation and
communi cation technology (1CT). This has resulted in the GE possessi ng
its own ICT infrastructure, becoming part of the Tertiary Education
Network and changing its donai n nane.

CHE PERSONNEL (from left): Prof. Saleem Badat, Dr. Lis Lange and
Mr. Zizi Mlonyeni
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2

3

THE H GHER EDUCATI ON QUALI TY
COMMI TTEE

he Hgher Education Act assigned to the GE statutory responsibility for
quality assurance and quality pronotion in HE to be carried out through a
per manent body, the HEX

Infornation on the activities of the HHCis contained in Part 2 bel ow

SECRETAR AT/ PERSONNEL

he GE has sought to appoint a core of full-tine professional staff wth
know edge and experience of Hg supported by abl e admnistrators and sup-
port staff. VMere necessary, the GE requests institutions to second person-
nel wth special expertise and skills to the GE and al so nakes use of con-
tract staff and local and international consul tants.

The present personnel structure and conpl enent is noted bel ow

2%

CHE PERSONNEL (from left): Ms. Christa Smit, Ms. Jeanette Maoko and
Ms Louise Ismail

v E@Q

CHE PERSONNEL (from left): Dr. Mala Singh, Ms. Sheila Tyeku and
Dr. Prem Naidoo
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Table 2: Personnel structure of the CHE and permanent and contract staff

Post Incumbent

1. Chief Executive Officer (CHE) Prof. Saleem Badat
2. Projects Manager (CHE) Dr. Lis Lange (contract)
3. Research Officer (CHE) Vacant
4. Personal Assistant (CHE) Ms. Christa Smit (contract)
5. Finance Secretary (CHE) Ms. Jeanette Maoko
6. Resource Officer (CHE, HEQC) Mr. Zizi Mlonyeni
7. Finance Manager (CHE, HEQC) Ms. Louise Ismail
8. Executive Director (HEQC) Dr. Mala Singh [NRF Secondment]
9. Director: Quality Promotion and Ms. Sheila Tyeku

Development (HEQC)
10. Director: Programme Accreditation = Dr. Prem Naidoo

and Co-ordination(HEQC)
11. Director: Institutional Audits and Dr. John Carneson

Evaluation (HEQC)
12. Projects Manager (HEQC) Mr. Tshepo Magabane (contract)
13. Manager: Programme Mr. Theo Bhengu

Accreditation and Co-ordination

(HEQC)
14. Manager: Programme Ms. Mary Mwaka

Accreditation and Co-ordination
(HEQC)

5

CHE PERSONNEL (from left): Dr. John Carneson, Mr. Tshepo Magabane

and Mr. Theo Bhengu

&

CHE PERSONNEL (from left): Ms. Mary Mwaka, Dr. Leonard Martin and
Mr. Kenny Shalang

e}
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Post

Incumbent

Approved Posts

15. Manager: Institutional Audits and Dr. Leonard Martin (contract)
Evaluation (HEQC)

16. Manager: Quality Promotion and Ms. Barbara Morrow (contract)
Development (HEQC)

17. Project Administrator: Programme Mr. Kenny Shalang
Accreditation and Co-ordination
(HEQC)

18. Project Administrator: Programme Mr. Derrick Zitha
Accreditation and Co-ordination
(HEQC)

19. Project Administrator: Institutional Ms. Innocentia Mabuela
Audits and Evaluation (HEQC)

20. Project Administrator: Quality Ms. Nikki Groenewald
Promotion and Development
(HEQC)

21. Personal Assistant (HEQC) Ms. Pam Du Toit [NRF Secondment]

22. Secretary Programme Ms. Jenny Maloi
Accreditation and Co-ordination
(HEQC)

23. Secretary Institutional Audits and Ms. Nokuthula Twala
Evaluation (HEQC)

24. Secretary Quality Promotion and Ms. Melita Tshule
Development (HEQC)

Temporary Posts

25. Office Administrator and Special Ms. Lehanda Rheeder (contract)
Projects Officer (CHE/HEQC)

26. Office Assistant (CHE/HEQC) Ms. Maria Mmaoko (contract)

27. Researcher (CHE) Mr. Thierry Luescher

28. Project Manager (HEQC) Dr. Herman du Toit

29. Project Manager (HEQC) Ms. Kathy Luckett

30. Administrative Assistant (HEQC) Mr. Moloko Mothemela

31. Administrative Assistant (HEQC) Mr. Dominicus Yotwana

CHE PERSONNEL (from left): Mr. Derrick Zitha, Ms. Innocentia Mabuela

and Ms. Nikki Groenewald
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Extensi ve use continued to be nade of consultants, especially on projects,
and of short-termcontract staff because of inadequate state funding and
rel i ance on donor funding.

The success of the G depends on high quality, effective ad efficient staff
w th the necessary know edge, expertise, skills and conpetencies. Pertinent
issues are the fo |l owng:

First, it isclear that the GEwIIl not often find staff a the senior and md-
de-levels that can inmediately discharge the responsibilities associated
wth their posts. This neans that throughout the organisation, and espe-
cialy at the senior and mdd e-levels, the GE wll have to function as not
just a learning organisation but also a strong nentoring organi sation -
internally and through various forns of staff devel opnent through other
avenues.

Second, while the overall equity profile of the GE is generally acceptabl e
(see Table 3 below), especially in terns of gender, achdlenge is the 'race
profile a the executive and senior staff level. Mntoring and effective suc-
cession planning wll be required to address this chal | enge.

Table 3: Equity profile of CHE Staff

Rank/'Race’ African Coloured Indian White Total
Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female

Executive 1 1 1 1
Senior 1 1 1 1 2 2
Middle-Level 5 2 1 1 2 6 5
Junior 5 2 7
Total (Gender) 5 8 1 1 2 1 1 5 9 15
Total (‘Race’) 13 2 3 6 24

Third, as arelatively snall organisation the retention of good staff, espe-
cially those at senior and midd e-levels of the HHG is an ongoing chal -
lenge. Qher quality assurance bodies have the resources to offer consider -
ably better sal ary packages than the GE

CHE PERSONNEL (from left): Ms. Pam Du Toit, Ms. Nokuthula Twala
and Ms. Melita Tshule

il




COUNCIL ON HIGHER EDUCATION ANNUAL REPORT 2000/2001

Firdly, the GEis highly sensitive to the resource constraints of hi gher edu-
cation and the need to avoid creating the GE as a financia |y unsustai nabl e
body. However, the 24-person personnel structure that is currently provided
for is proving inadequate in relation to responsibilities. There is nuch stress
and strain especia ly on executive and senior staff in both the advisory and
qual ity assurance operational areas of the GE

It wll be necessary to request support fromthe DoE for at |east one addi -
tional staff nenfber on the advisory side, one office administrator and a nid-
de-level information/data person that serve the GE and HEQC and nore
staff at different levels on the quality assurance side. This does not include
the extra staff that will berequired if standard setting becones a GE respon-
shility, as proposed by the Sudy Team on the NCE

Adequat e financial provision has to be nade for the reasonabl e staffing of the
CGHE or the denands made on the GHE will need to becone congruent wth
the finances alocated toit.

4  FI NANCES

he Secretariat has and wll continue to spend nuch energy and effort in nobi -
l'izing donor funding for research and devel opnent activities. During the past
year, new funds were secured fromthe Ford Foundati on, the Departnent for
International Devel opnent (DFID and the Dutch governnent. Wiere possi -
ble, the DoE has provided great assistance in supporting GHE applications
for donor funding.

However, of the alnost R24 mllion budget for 2002-2003, sone Rl4 nillion
is derived fromdonors. These donors have nade it clear that while they are
conmtted to assisting around certain research and initia devel opnent activ-
ities, they are not prepared to carry costs related to the long-term system
functions, especially around quality assurance.

CHE PERSONNEL (from left): Ms. Lehanda Rheeder, Ms. Maria Mmaoko
and Mr. Thierry Luescher
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Table 4: CHE income and expenditure by sources and functions, 2002-2003

Source CHE HEQC Total
DoE R 3 553 094 R 1246 906 R 4 800 000
DoE top-slice R 4008000 R 4 008 000
Gouvt. surplus R 1200000 R 1 200 000
Total DoE R 3 553 094 R 6 454 906 R 10 008 000
Private providers income R 950000 R 950 000
Donor R 4 198 931 R 8830000 R 13978 931
Total R 7 752 025 R 15284 906 R 23 986 931
DoE contribution (%) 45.83 42.23 41.72
Donor contribution (%) 54.17 57.77 58.28

Qvernnent funding that is adequate for the discharge of all the responsi -
bilities that have been allocated to the GE and particularly the quality
assurance responsibilities, wll have to be secured. The conmitnent of the
DoE to top-slicing the higher education budget for quality assurance activi -
ties is an inportant first step. The principle should be that governnent
neets al |l core personnel costs of the GH HEQC The overall targets shoul d
be that in 2006/ 2007, government neets 80%of the GHE portion of the bud-
get and 90%of the HEQXC portion of the budget. Lhless there is a nove in
this direction, sustainability wll be a probl em

b

i

CHE PERSONNEL (from left): Dr Herman du Toit, Mr. Moloko Mothemela
and Mr. Dominicus Yotwana
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THE HIGHER EDUCATION QUALITY COMMITTEE

PART 2

THE QUALI TY ASSURANCE
ACTTM TTES F THE GE

THE H GHER EDUCATI ON
QUALI TY COWM T1

1 I NTRODUCTI ON

uality assurance is a statutory responsibility of the GE carried out
through its pernmanent sub-conmittee, the HEQC According to the H gher
Education Act of 1997 the functions of the HEC are to:

gt Promote quality in higher education;

<5‘)V(> Audit the quality assurance nechani sns of higher education institu-
tions; and

w)v(> Accredit programmes of hi gher educati on.

The HEQC operates within the franework of the NF and is accredited by
SAQA as the band ETQA for higher education.

HEQC MEMBERS (from left): Prof H P Africa, Ms J Glennie and
Prof D A Maughan Brown
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2 HEQC BOARD AND MEMBERSHI P

he HEQC has its own Board wth two CGHE nenbers represented on it (the
chai rperson of the HEQC and one ot her). HEQC nenbers are chosen by the
GE on the basis of nomnations frominterested parties in higher educa-
tion. Al HEX nenbers are appointed intheir own right for athree to four
year period, although they bring expertise and expertise from different
st akehol der donai ns. The current nenbershi p conpri ses:

Chairperson
Prof H P Africa

Voting Members
Ms J Glennie

Prof D A Maughan Brown

Prof B Khotseng
Prof N Kok
Ms K Sattar

Ms M Motshekga-Sebolai

Acting Vice Chancellor, University of Zululand
CHE member.

Director, South African Institute for Distance
Education, CHE member

Senior Deputy Vice Chancellor, University of Natal
(resigned 30 September 2002)

Vice Rector, University of the Orange Free State
Senior Vice Rector (Academic) Cape Technikon

Head, Quality Assurance, Durban Institute of
Technology

Manager: Corporate Affairs, Educor

HEQC MEMBERS (from left): Prof B Khotseng, Ms K Sattar and
Ms M Motshekga-Sebolai

HEQC MEMBERS (from left): Mr | Sehoole, Ms L Gordon-Davis and

Dr P Eagles
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Mr | Sehoole

Ms L Gordon-Davis
Dr P Eagles
Mr N Bicket

Dr J Reddy
Mr V Nkabinde

Non-voting members
Ms S Mokhobo-Nomvete

Dr M Qhobela

Dr P Lolwana

Prof S Badat

Dr M Singh

Executive President, SA Institute of Chartered
Accountants

Executive Officer, South African Tourism Institute
Chairperson, Forum of Statutory Health Councils
Director, Human Resources, Old Mutual
Independent Consultant

Executive Director, South African Graduates
Development Association

Executive Manager, Learnerships, Skills
Programmes and ETQASs, Department of Labour

Chief Director, Higher Education Branch, Department
of Education

Executive Officer, UMALUSI

Chief Executive Officer, Council on Higher
Education,

Executive Director, Higher Education Quality
Committee

3 ORGANI SATI ON

he full HEQC neets every two nonths and the HEQC Executive Committee

(EXQ) neets once a nonth. The work of the HEQC i s conduct ed t hrough

the followng sub-conmitt ees:

<}(‘;> The EXCO

<;‘()(> The Policy Devel oprent and Review Cormittee
w)v(> The Accreditation Committee (Private Providers)
gt The InterimJoint Conmittee (Public Providers)

Regul ar reports on the work of the HEQC are tabled at the bi-nonthly full
neeting of the GE

HEQC MEMBERS (from left): Mr N Bicket, Dr J Reddy, Mr V Nkabinde

and Dr M Qhobela

57




During the past year, the HEQC Board net five tines and the EXQO nine
tinmes. An expanded EXQO functions as a Policy Devel opnent and Revi ew
Qmmittee. This conmittee reviewed the draft Audit and Accreditation
Franework docunents before they were taken to the full Board. Al Board
nenbers have participated in one-day visits to public and private providers.
Wierever possible, all such visits have been chaired by a Board nenber.
Board nenfbers have al so taken up opportunities to participate in the neet -
ings of the InterimJoint Coomittee (1JQ and Accreditati on Conmittee.

The work of the HEC is divided anong three directorates and the Gfice of
the Executive Orector. The three Drectorates are:

Accreditation and -ordination;
Auditing and Eval uation and
Quality Pronotion and Capacity Devel opnent.

The HEC conprises of 17 full-tine staff that are clustered into the office of
the Executive Orector (3), the Accreditation and G-ordination Drectorate
(6), the Audit and BEvaluation Drectorate (4) and the Qiality Pronotion and
Capacity Devel opnent Directorate (4). The HEQC al so uses a nunber of con-
tract staff and consultants as well as the services of quality assurance experts
at higher education and other institutions and organi sations. It dranws on the
general infrastructure of the GE for its finance, personnel and nedia rel at -
ed requirenents.

he Executive Drector provides:

Quersight for policy and systens devel opnent and ongoing activities in
all three directorates of the HEXG

Liaison wth the GE s projects and activities;

Liaison wth international quality assurance organi sations;

Liaison wth other national initiatives in higher education in general
and qual ity assurance in particul ar; and

The nanagenent of special projects.

The past year has been hi ghly denandi ng, bei ng narked by an intensification
of planning and devel opnent activities relating to the inplenentation of the
HEXC s proposed quality assurance system Sone of the key activities for
which the office of the Executive Drector had to provide oversight were the
fad | owng:

Accreditation

C The accreditation of 231 programmes fromuni versities and techni kons
on the basis of the processing of 503 programes; and

C The accreditation of 116 programmes from private providers on the
basis of the processing of 282 programmes.
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Re-Accreditation
The eval uation of 62 providers and 251 programmes for the purpose
o re-accreditation. Ste visits were conducted to 25 providers wth a
total of 64 programmes. 49 private providers wth 57 progranmes
vere re-accred ted.

Visits to Institutions

Qe day visits to eight universities and four technikons. The visits
vwere to neet wth a range of institutional constituencies and di scuss
quality assurance related natters. Visits to remaining universities
and techni kons wll be undertaken in 2003.

Qe day visits to 9 private providers to discuss quality assurance
related natters. Mre such visits are scheduled for 2003 wth the
intention of covering 25%aof all private providers.

New Policy and Qui del i nes Docunents

The production of draft Audit and Accreditation Framework docu-
nents. The docunents were circulated for public comment and
finalised for publication, taking into account sone of the critical con-
cerns raised by respondents.

The devel opnent of draft guidelines for good practice in effective
Teaching and Learning. The guidelines are being used to informthe
devel opnent of criteria by the Audit and Accreditation directorates.

| npl ement ati on Pl an

The devel opnent of an inplenentation roll out plan to ensure that
the first round of audits and accreditation activities of the newquali -
ty assurance systemdue to commence in 2004 is well grounded and
prepared in relation to clear criteria and guidelines, user friendy
nmanual s, trained nenbers of audit and accreditation panels, and
appropriate capacity devel opnent and preparedness at provider
led.

Conveni ng of HEQC Forum

The holding of three HEQC Forum neetings for quality assurance
nanagers and co-ordinators fromuniversities and techni kons and of
two neetings with quality assurance nanagers from private
providers. The neetings were used to convey information on HEXC
proj ects and activities and di scuss the HHIC s energi ng systens and
franeworks for audit and accreditation.

Meetings with other ETQAs
Several neetings wth other ETQ®s to plan joint accreditation activi -
ties through the devel opnent of MOk.

International Liaison
Co-operation wth CA agencies in a range of countries in order to
learn fromgood practice in other systens and participation in and
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contribution to debates about quality inrelation to trans-border hi gher
educati on and accreditation.

Communi cati on wth stakehol ders

C The HEKXC had bilateral neetings wth all the key national stakehol d-
ers and ongoi ng communi cation wth particul ar constituencies. A pub-
licity brochure was published to introduce the HHC to every academ
ic and all higher education organi sati ons.

Appoi nt ment of Per sonnel

C The appoi ntnent of a full conpl enent of staff to undertake the HEXC s
work in the three directorates. The HEQC has 17 full tine staff nem
bers and a nuner of contract staff.

he Accreditation and -ordination directorate has three core areas of work:
Accreditation and eval uati on;
Co-ordination of quality assurance wth other Educati on and Trai ni ng
Quality Assurance (ETQY bodies in HE and
Quersight of certification.

Accreditation and Eval uation

This area of work covers:
The accreditation of public providers to offer stipulated | earning pro-
grammes | eading to NJg~registered qualifications;
The accreditation of private providers to offer stipulated | earning pro-
grammes | eading to NJg~registered qualifications; and
The devel opnent and inpl enentation of an accreditation and eval ua-
tion framework for learning programmes leading to NJ~registered
qualifications, which are not covered by professional councils and
Sector Education and Training Authorities (SETA) ETQRs.

New Accreditation System

Inlinewththe poicy intentions of the Wiite Paper, the HEC plans to trans-
formthe current separate accreditation systens (for universities, technikon
and private providers) into a new single and co-ordi nated system

The new systemhas been devel oped by a working group of experts and HEQC
staff, who in turn recei ved advi ce froma reference group consisting of repre-
sentatives fromrel evant stakehol der organi sations and international experts.
There has been extensive consultation wth all higher education institutions
and ot her stakehol ders. The new systemw || be ready for inplenentation in



2004. Preparation of new accreditation criteria, guidelines, and nanua s
are underway and once developed wll be circulated for conment to all
st akehol ders.

Routine Accreditation

During the period August 2001 to Septenber 2002, the HEQC processed
785 applications from public and private providers to offer new pro-
grammes and qualifications. The applications were processed in a conbi -
nation of activities that included expert conment on applications, commt -
tee screening for approval, conditional approval or rejection, and occasi on-
a site visits. The applications were processed by the Interim Joint
Qmittee (1JQ ( universities and technikons), and the Accreditation
Grmttee ( private providers). This is an interimarrangenent until a new
accreditati on systemis devel oped and i npl enented in 2004. Thisis a large
area of responsibility of this directorate as providers denonstrate their
responsi veness by devel opi ng hundreds of new educati on and trai ni ng pro-
grammes and qual i fications.

Private Provi ders

Between August 2002 and Septenber 2002, 282 progranmmes were sub-
mtted for accreditation by 128 private providers. G these progranmes
41% were accredited and 59% not accredited as they did not satisfy the
requirenents for accreditation. In addition, sone programmes had to be
returned to the providers due to inconplete information. The status of
accreditation for private providers for this period is depicted in Table 5
bel ow

Table 5: Status of accreditation for private providers: July 2001- September

2002
Accreditation No. of No. of No. of No. of
Committee Providers Programmes Programmes Programmes
Meeting Submitted Accredited Not
Accredited
July 2001 18 33 17 16
September 2001 19 30 13 17
November 2001 31 78 28 50
December 2001 20 42 14 28
March 2002 14 42 29 13
June 2002 26 57 15 42
Total 128 282 116 166



Private providers that were given conditional accreditation by SAQA before
HEQC began its operations have undergone a process of re-accreditation,
using instrunents and criteria drawn up by the HEQC The focus was on all
aspects related to institutional quality assurance nechanisns and pro-
gramme quality, and was not restricted to issues found deficient during the
first evaluation. This approach was necessitated mainly by gaps in inforna-
tionin certain cases, due to conplications arising inthe transition of accred-
itation activities fromSAQA to the HEQC It al so provided the HEIC with an
opportunity to conduct a thorough eval uation of such providers wthin its
own policy framework and procedural requirenents.

The nodus operandi fo re-accreditation was that of docunent -supported
applications by providers wthin HEQX policies and procedures, conple-
nented by site visits, where applicable. Phase 1 entailed a check by the HHQIC
Secretariat for conpleteness of applications, followed by an eval uation of
applications (perfornmance review questionnaire, institutional application
form and programme application form) by external institutional and pro-
granme eval uators. Phase 2 entailed a site evaluation by institutional and
programme eval uators. Private Hgher Education Institutions (FHES) were
requi red to submt two types of docunentation pertaining toinstitutional and
progranme detail, both of which were considered in deternmining the out -
cone of the re-accreditation.

G the 89 private providers that needed to be re-accredited, 63 were nulti-
purpose providers that, according to SAQA regulations, had to be quality
assured by HEQC Qe of the 63 institutions did not submt its programmes,
leaving a total of 62 institutions and 158 programmes for eval uation. Qe
hundred and fifty one (151) programmes were eval uated during this cycle
wth the remaining 7 to be evaluated during the next cycle in Gtober 2002
The rest of the singl e purpose providers (26) were referred to the rel evant
SETAs for the evaluation of their programmes. This data is depicted in Tabl es
6 and 7 bel ow

Table 6: Number of multi-purpose and single purpose institutions and pro-
grammes that required re-accreditation

Unit Multi-purpose Single purpose Total
Institutions 63 26 89
Programmes 258 90 348

Table 7: Number of programmes and institutions that were evaluated by the
HEQC re-accreditation process

Unit Number requiring Number
re-accreditation evaluated
Institutions 63 62

Programmes 258 251



Al the programmes submitted by the 62 multi-purpose providers under -
went a docurent -based eval uation. Twenty five (25) institutions al so under -
vert a site-based eval uation (Table 8). Ste evaluation visits were conduct -
ed where PHE s:

Gfered 10 or nore programmes that had to be re-eval uat ed;

Ofered any degree programmes that had to be re-eval uated; and/ or
Fail ed the docunent - based eval uati on conponent of the re-accredita-
tion process.

Table 8: Number of institutions and programmes that underwent document
based evaluation and site based evaluation

Institutions

Programmes

Unit Document based Site based
evaluation evaluation

62 25

251 64

g the 251 programmes and 62 institutions that were eval uated, 134 pro-
grammes and 49 institutions qualified for consideration at the
Accreditation Cormittee neeting. The rest of the progranmes had to be
referred back to the providers, due to inadequate infornation. If the
requested infornmation is provided by providers, the outstanding pro-
grammes w Il be tabled at an Accreditation Cormittee neeting of Novenber
2002.

d the 134 programmes consi dered, 57 (43% were accredited, while 57 %
vere not accredited. The reasons for non-accreditati on were:

Prograimes did not neet the accreditation requirenents of the
HEQC;

Programmes did not fall in the HE band;

Programmes were new programmes that were not due for re-accredi -
taion

The providers ranged fromsnal| providers offering two qualifications wth
20 learners, operating single offices wthin hones, to large providers offer -
ing 20 qualifications to 15 000 students at miltiple sites scattered in cities
and rural towns. Approxinately 85% of the programmes were certificates
and diplonas at NF level 5. Al the programmes subnitted were vocation-
al in nature with 35% in Commerce and Managenent Science, 15% in
Informati on Technol ogy, 14% in Sonatol ogy, Beauty and Sport, 10% in
Theol ogy, 4%in Performing Ats, 4%in tospitality, 2%in Conmunication
and Journalism 2%in Teacher Education; 2%in Design, (including interi -
or design and cl othing).

Mst of the private providers conpleted the applications for re-accredita-
tion wth reasonabl e care al though sone seened to take the process very



ligtly. Qonpared to earlier applications, the quality of submssions
i nproved. However in nost cases, the site based eval uations revea ed a situ-
ation different fromthe one portrayed by the paper applications. The eval u-
ation of the applications and site visits reveal ed that there were large varia-
tions in the quality of providers. They ranged frominstitutions wth excep-
tional quality and innovativeness to those of incredibly poor quality. Oh the
whol e, there were fewinstitutions that coul d be regarded as higher educati on
institutions offering good qual ity hi gher education progranmes.

In the past, the Accreditation and Gordination Drectorate used a limted
nuntber of academcs frompublic higher education institutions as eval uators
for private higher education applications. In order to increase the pool of
conpetent eval uators for eval uating accreditation applications fromprivate
providers, each private institution was requested to subnit the nanes of two
per nanent acadenic staff nenbers to be trained as eval uators. It was hoped
that such training would assist in building institutional quality assurance

capacity as vell.

The noninations were put through a screening process which was then fol -
lowed by a series of evaluators' workshops held in Durban (7- 8 My 2002)
attended by 24 del egates, Johannesburg (14-15 My 2002) attended by 36
del egates and Cape Town (16-17 My 2002) attended by 6 del egates (the
Western Gape has fewer private higher education institutions than Knazul u-
Natal and Gauteng). A draft-training nanual for programme eval uation has
been devel oped. The directorate has used this wder pool of eval uators for the
re-accreditati on exercise.

Publ i ¢ provi ders

The HEQC recei ved 503 programmes from uni versities and techni kons for
consideration at its four Interim Joint Conmittee neetings between 29
Novenber 2001 and 11 Septenber 2002. The relevant data is provided in
tabl e bel ow

Table 9: Accreditation of programmes of public providers, Nov 2001 - Sept 2002

Type of
Institution

University
Technikon
All

No. of Applications = Applications Programmes Programmes
Applications | not tabled tabled not accredited accredited
418 75 343 183 160
85* (0] 85 14 71

503 75 428 197 231
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Wen the data fromthe accreditation of public provider programmes is
anal ysed further, the folowng picture is revea ed.

If the 160 programmes of universities that were accredited during this peri -
od are considered in terns of fields of study, 45 were in Stience,
Engineering and Technology, 12 in Business and Commerce, 87 in
Education and 16 in Hinanities. This data is depicted in Figwe 1

Figure 1: Accredited programmes of universities by field of study

FIELDS OF STUDY

Science, Engineering
& Technology

. Business and
‘ commerce
Education

Humanities

Wien the 160 accredited university programes are considered by leves of
study and by historical type of institution, the situationis as fdlovs:

Table 10: Accredited university programmes by levels of study and by historical
type of Institution

Level of programme HDI HAI Total
Undergraduate certificates (Education) 2 3 5
Advanced certificates (Education) 14 3 17
Diplomas (Education) 13 23 36
Advanced Diplomas 5 5 10
Bachelor's degrees 10 16 26
Postgraduate diploma 9 12 21
Honours degree 6 10 16
Masters degree 10 15 25
Doctoral degree 2 2 4
Total 71 89 160
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Turning to the technikon sector, of the 71 programmes accredited, 42 pro-
grammes were in Science, Engineering and Technol ogy, 24 in Education and
5in Hnanities. This data is depicted in Figwe 2

Figure 2: Accredited programmes of technikons by field of study

FIELDS OF STUDY

Science, Engineering
& Technology

. Education

Humanities

Techni kons al so subnitted requests to offer 45 programmes (Form 2 pro-
cess) where the national curricula (so-called Form B process) had al ready
been accredited. 0 the 45 programmes accredited, 3 programmes were in
the Hunanities, 16 in Education, 4 in Business and Commerce and 22 in

Sci ence Engi neering and Technol ogy.

If the 45 accredited techni kon progranmes are considered by | evel s of study

and by historical type of institution the fdlowngis the situation.

Table 11: Accredited technikon programmes by levels of study and by type of

Institution
Levels of study HWI HB Total
Undergraduate Diploma/certificates 10 (0] 10
B Tech. 23 1 24
M Tech. 8 (0) 8
D Tech. 3 (0] 3
Total 44 1 45
Co-ordi nation and MJUs
This area of work invol ves:
<I:(» @l laboration wth professional councils and other ETQ@s (such as

SETAs) on the accreditation and eval uation of professional and work
based programres |eading to NJ~registered qualifications, and

Jit  Discussion, exchange of infornation and joint initiatives wth rel evant
ETQ%s and other national and regi onal agenci es concerned wth high-

er education.

66



The increase in the nunber of ETQs has led to difficulties and chal | enges
o co-ordination in higher education with respect to approaches to quality
assurance and other issues. To ensure that HE providers are not overbur -
dened by many and conflicting quality assurance denands, the HEC is in
di scussion wth other ETQAs about nore col | aborative approaches to qual -
ity assurance. As a result of the nunber of ETQAs claimng quality assur -
ance jurisdiction in HE the coordination of quality assurance through
MOk is a tine consuning and chal lenging job for the HEC as it seeks to
devel op a credi bl e, nanageabl e and sustai nabl e qual ity assurance system
It also raises the question of whether individual M)k are an effective res-
outiontothe mitiple clains to quality assurance jurisdiction in HE

Dfferent nodels of co-operation have been spelt out in the draft New
Accreditation Franmework docunment, and MOk based on these nodel s
coul d be concluded wth different ET@s. In the neantine, di scussions and
infornati on sharing sessions are being held wth sone ETQ® to find a
worki ng rel ationshi p. Sone co-operation agreenents are far advanced wth
afewEl@s, and joint accreditation visits are bei ng undertaken wth sone
prof essi onal counci | s.

Certification

SAQA regulations assign responsibility for certification to the rel evant
ETQA wth the possibility of delegation. Uhder past legislation, the
Qrtification Quncil for Techni kon Education (SERTEC) was responsi bl e
for the certification of technikon qualifications. The private acts of univer -
sities dlowthemto certify their own qualifications.

Due to increasing reports about the offering of fraudulent certificates, the
HEQC as the Hgher Education band ETQA, has developed a New
Cxtification Framework to:

Determine the status of certification and the certification processes in
institutions of higher learning, and
Mnitor the certification processes in institutions of higher |earning.

This is to ensure the protection of students and the integrity of higher edu-
cation certificationin general. This franework wll be inpl enented as part
of the new accreditation system

Priorities

For the imnmediate future the Accreditation and G-ordination directorate
has prioritised the followng areas of work:

Devel opi ng and i npl enenting a single integrated accreditati on system
for both private and public providers;



Entering into MOk with professional councils and other ETQAs;
Devel opi ng a new systemfor overseeing certification;

Gntributing to the devel opmrent of quality assurance regul ations.
Qurrently, SAQA and DE regul ations are being used to give legal force
to the vork of the directorate;

Devel oping and instituting a fair administrative process for considering
programmes that have been refused accreditation or re-accreditation
by the HEQC and

Devel oping a new i ntegrated i nformati on nanagenent system

The Accreditation and G-ordination directorate is relatively new but has
nade trenmendous progress in a variety of areas, including streantining its
accreditation systens and procedures. Its great strength is a dedicated team
of staff that work diligently, cdlaboratively and reflectively. Their capacities
Wil be severely tested in finalising and i npl enenting the new HEQC accred-
itation framework and ensuring that the priorities identified above are net.

ith the appointnent of a Drector in Septener 2001, the Drectorate began
to develop a progranme of activities in line wth the requirenent of the He
Act that the HHC audit the effectiveness of quality assurance nechani sns of
HEinstitutions. Activities have centred on the Audit Project, the a mof which
istoestablish apoicy franework for a national systemof institutiona audits
and to prepare for the first cycle of audits that will beginin 2004.

The Audit Project

The Audit Project has a nunber of sub-projects, ained at putting in place
critica elenents of the audit system

The Audit Questionnaire

In Novenber 2001 al | HE provi ders were sent a questionnaire on institution-
al arrangenents for quality assurance (@Y. The questions were designed to
indicate what the expectations of the HEXC were in respect of institutions
devel opi ng effective quality nmanagenent systens. The nai n purpose was to
gather base-line infornation that woul d guide the HEQC teans during one-
day visits that were planned to HE providers. Al public providers and over
50%of private providers responded to the questionnaire. The responses and
supporting docunents were of varied quality, but neverthel ess provided the
HEQC wth a useful overview of QA across the system



Audit Qiteria and the Audit Manual

A process is underway to develop an audit nanual and audit criteria. These
are intended to guide both the sel f -eval uation of (A systens that institutions
wll undertake, and the work of the external panels of experts that will vali -
date, on the basis of evidence, the self-eval uation report. The content of the
audit nanual wll cover the entire audit process, including the sel f-eval uation
process, the selection of auditors, the conduct of audits and the witing of
audit reports. The criteriawll focus on the core activities of HEinstitutions:
teaching and | earning, research and community service.

Soeci al i sts have been contracted to conplete its drafting and a | ocal research
unit has been commissioned to focus on the best practice of previous and
existing audit systens, both local and international. This naterial wll inform
the devel opnent of both the criteria and the nanual . A nuniber of pilot audits
wll be conducted in 2003, in the course of which these instrunents and the
net hodol ogy of the audits wll be refined.

Managenent Information System (MYS)

Institutional audits and QA systens in general require reliable, accurate and
relevant infornation, whether at a national or institutional level. Infornation
fromdifferent sources has to be integrated and anal ysed to in order to sup-
port audit judgenents about the effectiveness of institutional (A system and
to nake decisions relating to the nmanagenent of the audit system A partic-
ular challenge is presented by a key elenent in the audit system whichis the
gating of self-accrediting status to He providers in respect of the re-accred-
itation progranmes not covered by statutory professional bodies.

The directorate has devel oped a nodel of an HEQC informati on and docu-
nentati on systemthat wll forma key el enent in the devel opnent of a MS
A specialist that works with an Informati on and Gonmuni cati on Technol ogy
(1CI) conmttee of the GE is currently evaluating this nodel against the
broader 1CT needs of the GE

QGher Activities
Qher activities of the Drectorate have i ncl uded:

Qollaboration wth CGHESP (Community Hgher Education Service
Partnership) on the devel opnent of audit criteria related to service
| earni ng;

Participation in visits to technikons and agricultura colleges that are
coordi nated by the CIP as part of the interimarrangenents fol | ow ng
the cl osure of SERTEC

Preparing the HEQC response to SAQA on their policy proposal on
recognition of prior |earning;
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<f(‘;> Interacting wth various international speciaists and agencies from
the WK the Netherlands, Australia and India in relation to institu-
tional audits, including sending a nanager to participate in audit and
accreditation activities in India

Liai son with HE providers and ot her stakehol ders

The HEQC has adopted a consultative approach to the devel opnent of a
national QA system In addition to the steps outlined above, the directorate
participated in neetings around policy and systens i ssues wth stakehol d-
ers including SAUVCA, the CIR APPEDT, the DbE SAQA and the
Association of Principals of Agricultural @l leges (APAQ. The (A nanagers
of the public providers have a forumthat is convened by the HEQG and the
directorate has used these neetings to brief and consult col | eagues based at
public institutions. Metings have al so been held with private providers. In
addition, the directorate participated in the activities of sone regional con-
sortia of HEinstitutions.

Querall, the directorate has nade substantial progress towards establishing
a national audit and eval uation systemthat can be nanaged effectively and
efidetly. However, it is clear tha inoder toachieve this gad, it wll have
to build further capacity in respect of human resources and infrastructure
such as administrative, information and docunentation systens.

The nain challenge in the coming year will be to put in place al the ele-
nents required for the first cycle of institutional audits to beginin2004. To
neet this objectiveit wll be necessary to work closely wth a range of stake-
hol ders, including the institutions involved in the pilot audits. Another cru-
cial process wll be the recruitnent and devel opnent of a pool of potential
auditors of a very high caibre.

. QUALITY PROMOTI ON AND CAPAQTY
DEVELOPMENT DI RECTORATE

he focus of the activities of the Quality Pronotion directorate, in order of
priority, has been on:

<f(‘;> The devel opnent by the I nproving Teaching and Learning Prgect o
criteria and standards for the HEC to use in its quality assurance
(@ activities;

<)"(‘;> Facilitating discussion, dissemnation of infornation and the sharing
of (A experiences between all higher education institutions (HES)
and the HEQC especially through the (A Minagers' Forum

<)"(\;> Facilitating sharing of QA experiences and infornation between | ocal
H's and those fromother national systens; and
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Facilitating opportunities for senior HEX staff to learn and to draw
fromexperiences of other national QA agencies in setting up systens
and running institutional audits and programme reviews.

| nprovi ng Teachi ng and Learni ng Project

The Inproving Teaching & Learning Project was established early in 2002
The original goals of the prgect vere to:

1

Devel op criteria, mninumaual ity threshol ds and gui des to good prac-
tice on teaching and learning to informthe HEXC s institutional audit
and programme accreditation procedures, wth the aim of ensuring
that these contribute to the enhancenent and valid eval uati on of teach-
ing and | earning;

Engage the acadenic community in discussion around the suitability of
the proposed criteria and mni numqual ity threshol ds; and
perationalise the HECs Drectorate of Quality Promotion and
Capacity Developnent's commitnment to pronoting and enhanci ng
ef fecti ve teaching and | earning practi ce.

The process undertaken to achi eve the above has been as fol | ows:

OO0

A Project Mmager and a Vorking Goup of nine nenbers were
appoi nted, drawn from Acadenic Devel oprment, Qurriculum
Devel opment and S aff Devel opnent units across the spectrumof | ocal
HE i nstituti ons.

In preparation for their work, the Wrking Goup produced a
Franmewor k docunent and undertook a scoping exercise in order to
define the focus of their work and its conceptual underpi nni ngs.

A Needs and Gapacity Anal ysis was al so undertaken at a sel ected sam
ple of twelve institutions. The findings identified the folowng as key
areas for capacity devel opnent in HE

The transition fromschool to HE

Qurri cul um devel oprent ;

Language, nuneracy and hi gher |evel cognitive devel opnent; and
Prof essi onal devel opnent relating to quality assurance and teachi ng.

n the basis of this preparatory work, the Wirking Goup identified the fal -
| ow ng focus areas:

NOoO oA, WDN R

Programre P anni ng, Design and Managenent ;
Programme & Course Review,

Access & Adni ssi ons;

St udent Devel opnent & Support;

The Assessnent of Sudents;

Saff Devel opnent; and

Post gr aduat e Research Progr anmes.



For each of the focus areas, nenbers of the Vorking Goup produced an
Interim' Gde of Practice'. Each of these included a rationale, a set of 'evd -
uative questions' linked to 'good practice’ and 'threshold descriptors and
suggestions for data sources. A this stage it was anticipated that the Gdes
would be used for both internal reviews and for external eval uations for
both audit and accreditation.

Wi I'st this work was in progress the project held a seminar for Deputy Vice-
Chancel lors (Acadenic) or their equivalents fromboth the public and pri -
vate higher education sectors. Aninternational speciaist was invited to give
the keynot e address.

(nce drafts were produced, the project ran a 'Qnsultative Panel' for each
of the Interim@des of Practice. Atotal of 48 senior acadenics, academc
nanagers and students wth expertise and experience in the focus area
under consideration were invited to cooment on the project's work-in
progress fromthe perspective of those who woul d need to use the Godes for
internal reviewand for inproving teaching and learning. On the basis of the
panelists' comments, the Interim Godes were revised and have been sub-
mtted to the HEX for internal discussion and approval .

Facilitating Debate, Sharing Experiences and |Infornation
D ssem nati on

Interaction wth Quality Assurance nanagers from HE institutions is an
inportant aspect of the work of the Quality Pronotion and Capacity
Devel opnent Drectorate. It provides HEX staff wth an opportunity to lis-
ten, test ideas and share information. It al so enables (A nmanagers from
uni versities and technikons to interact wth each other. During the last year,
the HEQC convened three Quality Assurance Managers Foruns for public
He s.

The table belowindicates the levels of participation at neetings of public
HE provi ders.

Table 12: Participation in HEQC QA Managers Forum

Number of Number of HEIs Other HE
Date —. . .
participants represented organisations
November 2001 43 36 7
February 2002 43 34 6
June 2002 37 34 3

The participants fromHE organi sations were the directors of regiona He
associ ations as well as representatives fromSAWCA and the CIR

Separate neetings were held with private providers and these were coordi -
nated wth the Accreditation and -ordination Drectorate.



Table 13: Participation at meetings of private HE providers

Total Number of

REUE Participants Purpose
February 2002 97 General information sharing
April 2002 80 representing 37 HEIs Briefing on re-accreditation
July 2002 34 General information sharing

The Orectorate participated in neetings wth SAUVCA, CIR APPETD and
APAC which enabled it to share infornation about the HEQC s progr ammes
and to listen to stakehol der concerns. It also participated in regiona work-
shops that were arranged by regional HE associations and was invited to
wor kshops or gani sed by SAWCA and the CTR

Q@ within the context of nmerging Hel s

As a response to the chall enges presented by the changing public He | and-
scape, the HHEIC set up a project to assist it to understand the key i ssues and
chal l enges in nanaging qual ity assurance in the context of nergers, and to
discharge its audit and accreditation responsibilities where mssions identi -
ties, progranmes profiles and institutional systens are still evolving.

A teamof six people wth QA responsibilities and experience has been put
together to help wth this task. A its first neeting, key issues for investiga-
tion were identified. By Mrch 2003, the teamw!| have conpleted the first
phase of its work for presentation to the HEC

Capacity devel opnent

As national QAis fairly newin South Arican HE there is a linmted pool of
A policy personnel and practitioners fromwhich the HEQC can draw con-
sultants, specialist contributors and also its own staff. In order to discharge
its QA responsibilities in a considered, inforned and effective and efficient
manner, it is critica that the HHE invests in the professional devel opnent
of current QA personnel, new QA personnel and its own staff.

Initiatives have included the fol | ow ng.
South Africa - Scotland |inks Network

The idea of a South Africa - Scotland Network arose fromneetings and dis-
cussi ons between senior acadenmics, nanagers and QA practitioners from
South Africa and the Lhited Kingdom (WK), and the HEQC and the Quality
Assurance Agency (Q¥) inthe LK (ontact has devel oped, in particul ar, wth
the Scottish QA office and out of this has cone a conmtnent to devel op a
network of HEinstitutions in South Africa and Scotland, which wll be Iinked
and comnmuni cate largely by enail.



The purpose of the network is to enable mutual sharing of experiences,
i deas, practices and solutions and | earning, support and devel opnent. 20
South Arican and 17 Scottish institutions are participating in this project.
The Network wll becone operational in late 2002

Qntact wth the Scottish QWA office will be strengthened by a visit by the
HEQXC to observe institutional audits and subject reviews in Sotland. The
HEQXC has also been invited to participate in a neeting of the Lhiversities
Scotland Forumduring this visit.

Devel oprment of HEQC Staff
The followng strategi es have thus far been enpl oyed:

Providing opportunities for staff to attend national and international
QA and rel ated conferences, senminars and wor kshops.

Providing opportunities for staff to participate as observers in review
programmes of other national (A systens. In August, two nanagers
undertook a study tour to India as guests of the National Assessnent
and Accreditation Gouncil. In Novenber, sone senior HEQ staff wll
observe institutional and subject reviewactivities in Sotland.
Facilitating electronic interaction wth established QA practitioners
fromnational other systens. Al of the HHX s key proj ects have had
direct participation by QA practitioners fromother national systens.

QG her training

Akey area of work for the directorate during the next twelve nonths will be
the devel opnent of training progranmes for institutional audit panellists
and evaluators for programe accreditation. In addition, there wll be a
special focus on the devel opnent of chairpersons of audit panels, who wil
be critical to the success of institutional audits. The Inproving Teachi ng
and Learning Project wll shift its focus to work on quality i nprovenent
reaed activities.

Qher general directorate activities

The directorate participated in the programmes of the Accreditation and
Co-ordination and Auditing directorates, for exanple, the one-day visits to
HE institutions.

Firdly, as part of contributing to devel oping an acadenic di scourse on He
Q\ issues and al so high level education and training in QA, the Bxecutive
Orector of the HEQ devel oped and delivered a nodule on HE QA at an
international HE programme in France and as part of the He Misters pro-
grame at the Lhiversity of VWéstern Gape.



variety of research and devel opnent activities were undertaken to facilitate
and enhance the effectiveness of the work of the HEC

Nunerous studi es and i nvestigations were commissioned to assist wth
the developnent of the HEQCs audit and accreditation systens.
Experts in a nunber of different quality assurance agencies provided
inputs on key features of audit and accreditation systens in their coun-
tries. This infornation was used in the preparation of the Audit and
Accreditation Framewor k docunent s.

The Community H gher Education Service Partnershi ps (GHESP) pro-
ject of the Joint Education Trust (JET) was comm ssioned to produce
draft criteria for service learning for use in the HE s audit and
accreditation systens.

The Centre for Hgher Education Sudies and Devel opnent at the
Lhiversity of the Free Sate was commissioned to produce a survey
report on audit nanuals and guidelines in other country systens to
informthe devel opnent of HEQC s nanual s, criteria and i nstrunents.
Two nanagers fromthe Audit and Accreditation Drectorates partici -
pated in quality assurance visits arranged by the National Assessnent
and Accreditation Gouncil (NAAQ inindia. Their reports on | essons for
the HEG learned fromthis opportunity to observe audit and accred-
itation activities in another country, are being used i n HEQC pl anni ng.
The Drector of the Accreditation Drectorate and the project co-ordi -
nator responsible for the developnent of the draft Accreditation
Framework visited a nunber of national and regional accreditation
agencies in the Lhited Sates and attended an International Network
for Quality Assurance Agencies in Hgher Education (I NAAHE) work-
shop in Janai ca. They gathered considerable information on accredi -
tation and quality assurance in other systens and established good
links wth col | eagues in those systens.

The HEQC commissioned work on the accreditation/eval uation
requi renents of a nunber of international organisations that eval uate
the quality of MBA programmes. A report wth draft criteria for MBA
accreditati on has been produced and wll be tested in consultation wth
rel evant providers before being put into the HE accreditation sys-
tem

A working group has been established to |ook at quality assurance in
the context of nerging higher education institutions. The report of the
group (which will asoinclude a survey of international and |ocal expe-
rience inthis natter) wll be used to advise the HH on its audit and
accreditation responsibilities in a nerger environnent.

A consul tant has been commssioned to undertake a conprehensive
investigation of the costs of conducting institutional audits and pro-



THE HIGHER EDUCATION QUALITY COMMITTEE

granm@ accreditations, including the costs of training audit and
accreditation panel nenbers. The report wll be used to devel op
nore accurate budgets for the HEQC and formthe basis for discus-
sions wth the Departnent of Education and donor foundations on
financia support for the HEQC

<)"(‘;> The HEQC s I nproving Teaching and Learning Project has produced
draft guidelines for good practice in Teaching and Learning. These
wll be tested in discussion wth colleagues frompublic and private
providers as well as informthe devel opnent of criteria by the Audit
and Accreditation directorates. The project al so produced a Needs
Anal ysis on Inproving Teaching and Learning on the basis of inter-
views conducted at a selection of higher education institutions.

Q9 CHALLENGES FOR 2003

he first phase of systens and i nfrastructure devel opmnent work of the HEQC
is now a nost conplete. The coming year wll bring the key chall enge of
finalising a nunber of quality assurance instrunments and manual s and test -
ing thembefore full - scal e i npl enentation in 2004. The HEC w || al so have
to ensure that, in a period of great uncertainty and upheaval in higher edu-
cation, it supports HE institutions in devel oping the understanding and
capacity to respond to the requirenents of newaudit and accreditati on sys-
tens. Equally inportant wll be the ongoi ng devel opnent of prof essional i sm
and capacity in HEL staff as well as in audit and accreditation panels to
be able to carry out the HHC s quality assurance responsibilities in a way
that adds value to institutional initiatives to sustain and enhance quality in
South African higher education.
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CONCLUSI ON

he higher education 'system, and its constituent parts and actors continue
tobeinflux and to face najor challenges. Priarities are for the Mnistry to
purposeful |y effect the restructuring that is necessary and to build and con-
soidate the systemthrough pl anning, funding and quality assurance activ-
ities. There is considerabl e stress, strain and anxi ety wthin hi gher educa-
tion and a further and urgent priority is towrk diligently to create system
and institutional stability. The system institutions and actors are at the lim
its of their capacities to absorb in terns policy changes. It woul d be prudent
not to nake any further naj or denands on institutions and actors beyond
the necessary structural restructuring, institutionalization of a new aca-
denic policy systemand the consolidation and enhancenent of quality. The
overal | approach of the GE takes this as its frane of reference.

During the past three years there have been sone notabl e achi evenents on
the part of the GE Pre-eminent of these are

Advi ce on the shape and si ze of higher education, including the report
of mid-2002. The GE rai sed doubts about the efficacy, a theat point
of the planning, financial and quality instrunents, to bring about a
fundanental restructuring of higher education and to create a nation-
a, integrated, co-ordinated and differentiated system Instead, it pro-
posed a particular structural and institutional |andscape and institu-
tional conbinations of different kinds. QGucially, it set the franework
and discourse for subsequent consideration and proposals on
restructuring.

The New Acadenic Policy (NAP) D scussion Docunent was produced
on the request of the Departnent of Education. This was pi oneering
work that could have a naj or inpact on the academ c | andscape and
on higher education qualifications and progranme structures. The
SAQA level descriptors discussion docunent drew on the NAP work
and docunent in certain significant areas, as did the Sudy Team
report on the NF

Biilding a national quality assurance system that draws on the prac-
tices that have existed and have been positive but al so goes beyond
these practices. It has been a nassi ve chal | enge to rigorously and sen-
sitively conceptualise, plan and begin to inplenent a quality assur-
ance systemthat is effective and efficient, financially prudent, does
not retard responsi veness on the part of providers and is similtane-
ously developnental and inprovenent oriented but al so ensures
m ni num st andards and protection for students and the public.



There were pressures to quickly set up an ' off the shelf' quality assurance sys-
tembased on internati onal consul tants shoppi ng around for what was appro-
priate for South Africa. The HEIC rejected this approach. It took on and is
delivering on the chal | enge of constructing a systemthat is innovative, specif -
ically South African, which addresses our problens, challenges and needs,
and whi ch works for us.

n the basis of its achievenents and what ever shortcomings nay exist inits
work, the GHE nust now address key new chal | enges associated wth its
nandat e and responsi bilities.

These key chal | enges i ncl ude:
1 Respondi ng to new requests fromthe Mnister for advice

Thi s includes advi ce on:

The equalisation of the rand value of the ClL cost unit for universities
and techni kons in the existing funding fornula for higher education.
The designation of the proposed conprehensives and al so, nore gen-
erdly, the nonenclature of institutions and the conditions and criteria
for institutions to offer degree programmes and postgraduate pro-
gr anmes.

Various aspects of distance education, including:

C The conditions and criteria that should govern the provision of dis-
tance education progranmes by traditionally contact institutions given
the concerns raised in the National H an.

C The broader role of distance education in higher education in the |ight
of curent and future internati onal trends and the changes in inforna-
tion and conmmuni cation technol ogy.

C The role of a single distance education institution in South Arica, in
particular, therdethelatter codd play, as the Wiite Paper suggests, in
the devel opnent of a "national network of centres of innovation in
course desi gn and devel opnent.

2. Restructuring of higher education

An anbi tious undertaking to change the higher education |andscape will be
the defining feature of the HE terrain in the coning few years.

The GE is required to provide not just advice (on various policy natters)
but also strategic advice. If the defining feature of South Arican HEin the
comng years wll be the inplenentation of restructuring, wth huge conse-
quences for the country, it is inportant that the GE provide strategic,
i nforned and consi dered advice on the general and nacro issues related to
the inpl enentation of restructuring through effective and sensitive nonitor -

ing.



3. Mbni toring the achi evenent of policy objectives

Linked to the above, building an effective systemfor nonitoring and eval u-
ating perfornance in and towards the achi evenent of policy goals so as to
ensure feedback into further policy devel opnent and refinenent is a strate-

gc priaity.
4. Qitically reviewng higher education

Acritical reviewof select issues, trends and devel opnents in South African
hi gher education for the purposes of proactively advising the Mnister on
inmedi ate and future chal l enges to higher education is al so necessary.

5. I npl enenting a new national quality assurance and
promnotion system

Mich of the conceptual work has been done, planning has begun around
key activities of a new accreditation regine and institutional audit frane-
vwork and qual ity pronotion activities have been instituted.

As aquality pronotion and capacity devel opnent framework nust be devel -
oped, there have to be ongoing pronotion and capacity building initiatives,
the new accreditation processes and audits have to be inplenented and
regul ati ons have to be produced to give the new qual ity assurance and pro-
notion systemthe force of |aw

6. Bui 1 ding an understanding of the GEs role

Firdly, it is inportant to continue to build systemw de understand ng
anong di verse actors of the character and role of the G and to frane the
GEs rde interns of contributing to the effective steering of the higher
educati on system

There are also key internal organisational challenges for the GE These
i ncl ude:

7. Devel opi ng and consol i dating the organi sati on and
secretari at

In the past period the GE has come under nuch stress and strain to both
build an infrastructure and aso discharge all its responsibilities. The
trenendous progress that has been nade towards fulfilling the nandate is
due to an extrenely innovative, coomtted and hard-working Secretariat,
the support of HE institutions and to effective and conpetent consultants
who have contributed to various G projects and initiatives.

There are, however, aspects of the organisation that need to be further devel -
oped and consolidated. First, to be effective and efficient the GEwl|l have



to function as a nentoring organi sation with serious attention to ongoi ng staf f
nent ori ng, devel opnent and training. Second, it wll sinply not be possible
for the Secretariat, and especially executive and senior staff, to sustain the
pace of work of the past three years wthout serious consequences. H ther
addi tional hunan and financial resources will need to be nade avail abl e or,
dternatively, the responsibilities of and demands on the GE wi Il have to be
aligned wth the avai |l abl e resources.

Firdly, there wvas a wse and diligent previous Guuncil wth a conscientious
Executive Cormittee, and individual nenbers that nmade najor contribu-
tions tothe various activities of the GE Qrer tine, arelationship devel oped
between the Qouncil and Secretariat that led to greater degrees of aut onony
being given to the Secretariat wth nuch leewvay for initiative and proactive
behavi our on the part of the Secretariat. This kind of contribution on the part
of new Qouncil nenbers, relationship between the new Gouncil and
Secretariat and node of operation wll be inportant for the continued
progress of the GE

Qrerall, the GE is in a heathy state and is well poised to continue dis-
charging the nandate and responsibilities accorded to its by the H gher
Education Act and the Wiite Paper nore conprehensively, effectivdy ad
efficiently in the coming years. The support and gui dance of the new Gouncil,
EXQ@and Chair wll be indispensable as wll be the continued creative and
hard work of the Secretariat and the adequate resourcing of the GE



CHE MEDIA

CHE

VEDI A

Research Reports

Governance in South African H gher Education (May 2002)

Qarification of private provider usage of terns 'accreditation’, 'validation and
"endorsenent’ and rel ated terns (August 2001)

Gnditions and criteria under which higher education institutions should be
permtted to use the term'university' (July 2001)

Registration and recognition of private higher education providers: Problens,
prospects and possibilities wth specific reference to the Hgher Education
Arendnent Bill, 2000 (July 2001)

Sertec transition plan, 2001 - 2002 (April 2001)

Qual ity assurance in higher education: The role and approach of professional
bodi es and SETAs to quality assurance ( Novenber 2000)

Thinki ng about the South African higher education institutional |andscape: An
international conparative perspective on institutional differentiation and
restructuring (Novenber 2000)

An evaluation of Sertec and the Quality Pronotion Lhit (July, 2000)

Policy Reports

Promoti ng God Governance in South African H gher Education (My 2002)
Towards a New H gher Education Landscape: Meeting the Equity, Quality and
Soci al Devel opnent I nperatives of SAin the 21st Gentury (July 2000)

Policy Advice Reports

Pol i cy

GE Advice to the Mnister of Education: The Proposed New H gher Education
Fundi ng Framework of the Mnistry of Education and its Inplications for the
Reconfiguration of Hgher Education

Docunent s

H gher Education Quality Coomittee: Foundi ng Docunent (January 2001)
H gher Education Quality Cormittee: Draft Foundi ng Docurent (August 2000)

Qccasi onal Paper s

Human Resource Devel opment and H gher Education M anning: |nportant
National and Gontinental Initiatives (No. 1, February 2002)
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D scussi on Docunents

Programme Accreditation Framewor k (June 2002)

Institutional Audit Fr amewor k (June 2002)

A New Acadenic Pdicy for Programmes and Qualifications in Hgher Education:
D scussi on Docurrent (Cct ober 2001)

Kagi sano (D scussion Series)

Reinserting the Public God into Hgher Education Transformation (N 1,
Novenber 2001)

Conf erence Reports

The Gouncil on H gher Education 3rd Annual onsul tative Conference
(29 - 30 Novenber 2001)

HEQC institutional audit and programe review traini ng workshop
(25-29 Septenber 2001)

Wor kshop of HEQC Forum of quality assurance nanagers of higher education
institutions (24 July 2001)

The HEQC | aunch and strategi c pl anni ng wor kshop ( May/ June 2001)
The Gouncil on H gher Education 2nd Annual Consul tative Conference
(23 - 24 Novenber 2000)

The Gouncil on H gher Education 1st Annual Gonsul tative Conference
(29 - 30 Novenber 1999)

Annual Reports

Annual Report 2000/ 2001 ( Novenber 2001)
Annual Report 1999/ 2000 ( Novenber 2000)
Annual Report 1998/ 1999 ( Novenber 1999)

Newsl etters

CHE News No. 4 (Novenber 2001)
CHE News No. 3 (May 2001)

CHE News No. 2 (Novenber 2000)
CHE News No. 1 (Novenber 1999)



CHE MEDIA

Press Rel eases

Meeting between the Gouncil on Hgher Education and the Mnister of Education
on the Mnistry's Hgher Educati on Restructuring Proposal s (3 My 2002)

GE lloquium Building Relationships between Hgher Education and the
Private and Public Sectors and Gontributing to their Hgh-Level Person-power and
Know edge Needs (20 June 2002)

New Menber ship of the Gouncil on H gher Education, 2002-2006 (19 June 2002)
Launch of the Hgher Education Quality Cormittee of the Gouncil on H gher
Education (2 May 2001)

The National HAan for Hgher Education of the Mnistry of Education (5 Mrch
2001)

Publ i ¢ handover to the Mnister of Educati on, Professor Kader Asmal, of the GE
S ze and Shape Task Team Report, Towards a New H gher Educati on Landscape:
Meeting the Equity, Quality and Social Devel opnent |nperatives of South Africa
inthe Twenty-First Gentury (18 July 2001)

Q gani sational Brochures
Qual ity Assurance in Hgher Education: The H gher Education Quality Conmttee
(Jul'y 2002)
The GHE H gher Education Quality Cormittee (2000)
The Gouncil on H gher Education (2000)

Internet site

http://ww che. ac. za
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

REPORT (F THE AUDI TOR GENERAL ‘

TO PARLI AMENT ON Q
THE FI NANO AL STATEMENTS OF

THE COUNCI L ON H GHER EDUCATI ON

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 NMARCH 2002

'8
iy

1 AUDI T ASSI GNVENT

The financial statenents as set out on pages 89 to 104, for the year ended 31 Mrch 2002,
have been audited in terns of section 188 of the Gonstitution of the Republic of South
Africa, 1996 (Act No. 108 of 1996) , read wth sections 3 and 5 of the Auditor-General Act,
1995 (Act Nb.12 of 1995) and section 18 of the Hgher Education Act. 1997 (Act No. 101 of
1997). These financial statenments, the nai ntenance of effective control neasures and com
pliance wth relevant laws and regul ations are the responsibility of the accounting authori -
ty. M responsibility is to express an opinion on these financia statenents, based on the
audt.

2 N ATURE AND SCOPE

The audit was conducted in accordance wth Satements of South African Auditing
Sandards. Those standards require that | 'plan and performthe audit to obtai n reason-
abl e assurance that the financial statenents are free of nateria nisstatenent.

An audit includes:
exam ning, on atest basis evidence supporting the amounts and di scl osures in the
financial statenents.
assessi ng the accounting principles used and significant estinates nade by nan-
agenent. and
eval uating the overall financial statenent presentation.

Furthernore, an audit includes an examnation on a test basis of evi dence supporting com:
pliance in all material respects wth the relevant |aws and regul ati ons which cane to ny
attention and are applicable to financial natters.

| believe that the audit provides a reasonabl e basis for ny opinion.

3 AUD T CPI N ON

Inny opinion, the financial statenents fairly present. in al nateria respects the financia
position of the Guncil on Hgher Education (council) at 31 March 2002 and the results of
its operations and cash flows for the year then ended i n accordance wth general |y accept -
ed accounting practice and in the manner required by the Public Fi nance Managenent Act.
1999 (Act No.1 of 1999) (PFWRN).
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Without qualifying the audit opinion expressed above, attention is drawn to the followng
natters:

4.1 Mitters not affecting the financial statenents
411 Internal audit

The accounting authority had not established an internal audit section and had not facili -
tated a risk assessnent for the period under review These functions are required in terns
of section 27.2 of the Treasury Regul ati ons.

412 Audit comittee

The executive coomttee of the council is also serving as the audit coomttee of the council.
This is a contravention of section 27.1.4 of the Treasury Regul ations, which requires that
the mjority of the nenbers of the audit conmttee should be nade up of nenbers who
are independent of the council.

413 Cash managemnent

Treasury Regulation 31.2.1, issued in terns of the PAMA, requires the accounting authori -
ty to obtain approval fromNational Treasury before openi ng new bank accounts. Treasury
Regulation 31.3.3 requires any funds that are in excess of RL nillion to be deposited wth
the Gorporation for Public Deposits. However, the council did not obtain approval to open
new bank accounts and also did not deposit its funds in excess of RL million wth the
Gorporation for Rublic Deposits. The council did therefore not conply wth the rel evant reg-
ul ati ons.

4.14 Delegation of authority

The council does not have its own delegation of authority for the initialisation of transac-
tions. As a

result transactions are entered into wthout the necessary authorisation having been
obt ai ned.

The assi stance rendered by the staff of the council during the audit is sincerely appreciated.

.

N Puren
foo AUDI TOR - GENERAL Pretaria
28/ 08/ 2002



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COUNCI L ON HI GHER EDUCATI ON

FH NANCI AL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MaARcH 2002

89



90

COUNCIL ON HIGHER EDUCATION ANNUAL REPORT 2000/2001

H NANCI AL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 NMRARCH 2002

Counci | Menbers

Chief Executive Gficer

Regi stered of fice

Postal address

Nat ure of busi ness

Auditors

Prd.  WNkhul u (Chai r per son)
Prd. B Fidgi

Prd. M Ranmashal a

Prd. R St unpf

Prd. N Segal

O H Africa
Dr N Magau
D R Adam
Dr K Mokhel e
Mr K D seko
M V Nl apo
M S | saacs

Ms N Gordi rer
Ms M Keet on
Ms J Gennie
Ms N Badsha

Ms ABrd
Prof. MS Badat
Pretoria

P O Box 13354
The Transhed
Pretaria

0126

The mission of the GEis to contribute to the

devel opnent of a hi gher education system
characterised by quality, responsiveness, equity, ad
effective and efficient provision and nanagenent.

Audi tor General
PQ Box 446
Pretaria

0001



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FH NANCI AL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 NMRRCH 2002

Contents Page
Directors Report 92
Balance sheet 96
Income statement 97
Statement of changes in equity 98
Cash flow statement 99
Notes to the financial statements 100

Drectors' approval of the annual financial statenents
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General reviewof the state of financial affairs

The core activities of the Guncil on Hgher Education (GE) invol ve:

. Advising the Mnister at his/her request or proactively on all natters related to
hi gher educat i on
Assuning executive responsibility for quality assurance wthin higher education
and training - including progranme accreditation, institutional audits, progranme
eval uation, quality pronotion and capacity building
Monitoring and eval uating whether, how to what extent and wth what conse-
quences the vision, policy goas and objectives for higher education are being
real i sed
Qntributing to devel oping higher education - giving leadership around key
national and systenic issues, produci ng publications and hol di ng conf erences and
research to sensitise government and stakeholders to inmediate and |ong-term
chal | enges of higher education.
Reporting to parlianment on higher education
Gonsul ting with stakehol ders around hi gher educati on.

The najor part of the GE s activities and which consunes the bulk of its funding is the
executive responsibility for quality assurance through a pernanent sub-conmittee, the
H gher Education Quality Conmittee (HEQD.

To date, the GE has obtained a larger proportion of its incone fromdonor funding than
government fundi ng. Cormmuni cation wth donors nakes it clear that no further financial
support wll be forthcoming for general operational requirenents related to quality assur-
ance. Support will only be considered for specific research and devel opnent activities. In
this context, a ngjor policy and strategic issue is the sustainability of the GE particuarly
the quality assurance activities of the HKX

The GE is enpowered by the Hgher Education Act, No. 101 of 1997, tolew fees for q -
ity assurance activities. It does so wth respect to private providers of higher educati on and
training. However, wth respect to public higher education institutions it has argued that a
top slice of the Departnent of Education (DoE) higher education budget to cover its quality
assurance activities is the nost sensi bl e and effecti ve neans of covering the HK s require-
nents. The DDEis in agreenent wth this approach and has, indeed, provided a top-dice d
just over R4 million for the 2002-2003 financial year.

This top slice wll, however, have to be increased substantially in the coning year if the
HE istoneet al itsresponsibilities. Aternatively, the HHC wll have to | evy public high-
er education institutions for all quality assurance related activities. This, however, ismt a
preferred approach since it wll sinply nean that funds wll accrue to the HEX through
the institutions rather than the DoE directly and wll place unnecessary pressures on the
GErelated to collection of levies and wll a so require additional staff to nanage finances.

To date, the GE has not utilisedits total incone and has been carrying surpl uses as a con-
sequence of not having a full conplenent of personnel. Thus, there has been an under -



spendi ng on the personnel budget as well as on projects because of a lack of personpover
toinplenent all projects. Hwever, wth anost all personnel nowin place, and the use of
consultants and contract staff, the surpluses of previous years wll no longer continue from
2002- 2003 onwar ds.

Services rendered by the GHE

The services rendered by the GE are conprehensively covered in its Annual Report for
2000-2001, pages 77-101. The foll ow ng i ssues are covered:
. Menber shi p

Responsibilities of the GE

The Character and Role of the GHE

Fu filling the Mndate of the GE

CHE Task Teans and Prgects

The H gher Education Quality Commttee

Qgani sation

Secretari at/ Per sonnel

Fi nances

Under/ Over spendi ng

To date, the GE has been under-spending and has carried surpluses. This is because it
has not had a full conpl enent of personnel. There has been an under -spendi ng on the per -
sonnel budget as well as on projects because of a lack of personpower to inplenent all pro-
jects. Hwever, wth al nost all personnel nowin place, and the use of consultants and con-
tract staff, the surpluses of previous years wll no longer continue from 2002- 2003
onvards. |ndeed, from 2002-2003 there wll be considerabl e pressures on the GE bud-
get as it beginstoneet all its responsibilities related to quality assurance.

Capacity constraints

The capacity probl ens of the G have related principally to personpower at its disposal.
There have been three related pressures on the GE

First, at the beginning there was a gross underesti nati on of the nunber of personnel that
vwoul d be required for quality assurance activities. This neant that the staff conpl enent of
the GE had to be revi sed and pernission obtained for a larger staff conpl enent. However,
obtai ning the additional staff had to await additional funds for personnel being nade avail -
abl e by the DpoE since donor funding could not be utilised for full-tine core personnel.

Second, the GEis comitted to enpl oynent equity and pays serious attention toits equi -
ty profile. It has not been easy to find highly qualified bl ack and wonen personnel, espe-
cialy inquality assurance, whichis areatively newand highly speciaised field n occa-
si ons appoi ntnents have had to be put on hold in order to ensure that the overall profile
of the GEinterns of 'race and gender was not distorted.

Third, the GE faces the challenge of retention of experienced staff in whomit has nade a
considerable investnent in terns of training. It experiences strong pressure from ot her



bodi es in the education and training sector that have | arger budgets and are able to attract
GE staff wth offers of larger remuneration packages. Thus, it is likely that personnel
capacity to undertake all responsibilities effectively and efficiently will be an ongoing strug-
de

Wilisation of donor funds

The GE has been highly successful inwiting project proposal s and nobilising donor fund-
ing. The record of utilisation of donor funds is nixed. In sone cases, funds have been used
effectively and wthin the tines specified. In other cases, it has not been possible to utilise
all the funds wthin specified periods because of personnel shortages and thus | ack of capac-
ity toinplenent initiatives and projects. In these cases arollover of funds has been reguest -
ed and obt ai ned.

Cor por at e gover nance arrangenent s

The GHE has in place effective and transparent financial nanagenent, internal control sys-
tens, policies and procedures. These include policies and procedures governing procure-
nent, paynents, banking, travel and subsistence etc. These systens were established by a
financial consultant and are nanaged and administered by a full-tine Gfice Minager wth
oversight by the Ghief Executive Gficer. The GE was assessed, in order to recei ve donor
aid, by the Lhited Sates Agency for International Devel opnent and given a clean hill of
hedl th.

The Executive Gommittee of the GHE as well as the Executive Cormittee of the HEQC nain-
tains oversight of finances through reporting every two nonths by the CEO on i ncone and
expenditure, including a variance report.

The Executive Gonmittee of the GHE approves the appoi ntnent of all personnel above the
level of Deputy-Drector.

The HEQC Board as well as the full Gouncil of the G approves the annual budget of the
GE An Audit Comittee conprising of a GHE nenber and two senior persons from hi gh-
er education institutions has been established.

DO scontinued activities/Activities to be di sconti nued

The H gher Education Act and the Wiite Paper on higher education explicate the responsi -
bilities and nandate of the G There have been no anendnents or nodificati ons to either
docunents and therefore the overall responsibilities and specific activities of the GE
renain as in the past.

However, over tine certain activities cone to the fore while others nove into the back-
ground. During this period, the Task Teans on New Acadenic Policy and Governance have
been very active, those on Shape and S ze and Funding and Financing noderately active,
whi | e the Language Pdicy Task Team has been on the back burner.

With respect to projects, the NF Revi ew and Responsi veness of H gher Education projects
have been highly active, the Role of Hgher Education in Social Transfornati on noderately
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active, while the projects on Mnitoring of Hgher Education and Triennial Review of
H gher Educati on have been on the back burner.
New Proposed activities

Wil e sone provision can be nade for proactive new activities deternined by the GFE
those of a reactive nature that nust respond to requests fromthe Mnister of Education
cannot be deternined i n advance.

Activities that will cone to the fore during the 2002-2003 year wll be:

Mbni toring the Achi evenent of Policy Gals

Triennial Review of Hgher Education

Rol e of Hgher Education in Social Transfornation

Qnditions and Qiteria for using certain designations and offering certain quali -
fications

Visits toinstitutions regarding institutiona audits

Re-accreditation of progranmes of private providers

Revi ew of MBAs

Al these activities are supported either by donor funds or levy incone from private
providers or by governnent funding.
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BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 NMARCH 2002

2001/ 02 2000/ 01
Not e R R
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 4 434 420 214 852
Current assets 12 135 689 4 352 709
Accounts receivable 5 16 435 20 390
Short term investments 11 978 057 4 069 738
Cash and cash equivalents 141 197 262 581
12 570 109 4 567 561
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Distributable reserve 6 582 380 4 397 658
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 5 987 729 169 903
12 570 109 4 567 561
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INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MaARcCH 2002

2001/ 02 2000/ 01
Not e R R

Revenue 2 5 655 855 7 023 910
Operating surplus / (deficit) (2 769 983) 1 750 272
Net finance income 7 519 044 298 742
Net surplus / (deficit) (2 250 939) 2 049 014
Extra-ordinary Item (Sertec) 3 4 435 661 0

2 184 722 2 049 014
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COUNCIL ON HIGHER EDUCATION ANNUAL REPORT 2000/2001

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS / EQUI TY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MaARCH 2002

Balance at 1 April 2000
Net surplus for the period

Balance at 31 March 2001
Net surplus for the period

Balance at 31 March 2002

D stributabl e Totd
Reserve
R R
2 348 644 2 348 644
2 049 014 2 049 014
4 397 658 4 397 658
2 184 722 2 184 722
6 582 380 6 582 380
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CASH FLOWSTATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated by operations
Net interest received

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment to maintain

Operations

- additions to property and equipment
Net cash outflow from investing activi-
ties

Cash flows from financing activities

Increase in transfer of assets from
SERTEC

Net cash inflow from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
period

2001/ 02 2000/ 01
R R

3 123 326 1 391 566

519 044 298 742

3 642 370 1 690 308

( 291 098) (217 044)
(291 098) (217 044)

4 435 663 0
4 435 663 0
7 786 935 1 473 264
4 332 319 2 859 055
12 119 254 4 332 319
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1.1

1.3

1.4

Accounting policies

The financial statements are prepared in accordance wth the historical cost
basis, and incorporate the foll owng accounting policies that are consistent wth
those adopted in the previous year.

Property, plant and equi prent

Tangible assets are stated at historical cost |ess accunul ated depreciation.
Qubsequent expenditure relating to an itemof property and equi prent is capi -
talised when it is probable that future economic benefits fromthe use of the
asset Wil be increased. Al other subsequent expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period inwhichit is incurred.

The cost of tangible assets less the estinated residual value is witten off by
equal annual instal nents over the expected useful lives of the assets as fol | ovs:

Furniture and fittings 10 years
Conput er har dwar e 3 years
Gfice equi pnent 5 years

The cost of tangi bl e assets less than R2 000 (two thousand rand) are witten of f
infdl inyear of acguisition

Revenue

Revenue represent state subsidy recei ved fromDepartnent of Education, dona-
tions recei ved and fees charged for accreditation of courses provided by Privae
Hgher Education providers. Charges for accreditation are recogni sed when
work done is billed to providers and excludes Val ue Added Taxation. |ncone
received fromgrants, donations and incone for specific projects are recorded
as deferred i ncone and di scl osed on the bal ance sheet with non- current liabili -
ties. These incones are brought to the i ncone statenent in the financia period,
when the GEis entitled to use this funds.

Financi al instrunents
Measur ement
Financial instrunents are initially neasured at cost, which includes transaction

costs. Subsequent to initial recognition these instrunents are neasured as set
out bel ow
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NOTES FOR THE FI NANCI AL YEAR ENDED 31 NMARCH 2002

Trade and ot her recei vabl es
Trade and other receivables originated by the council are stated at cost |ess
provision for doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equi val ent s
Gash and cash equival ents are neasured at fair val ue.

1.5 Provi si ons

Provi sions are recogni sed when the conpany has a present |legal or construc-
tive obligation as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an out -
flowof economc benefits will occur, and where a reliable estinmate can be nade
of the anount of the obligation.

2001/ 02 2000/ 01
R R
2 Revenue
Governnent grants 4 000 000 4 663 000
Donat i ons recei ved 916 353 2 061 365
Accreditation private providers 637 000 16 000
M scel | aneous 102 502 283 545
5 655 855 7 023 910
3 Extraordinary item

Qperations of Qertification Guncil for Techni kon Education / Sertiferi ngsraad
vir Techni kononderwys (SERTEC) were incorporated into the GE s Qiality
Assurance Lhit. SERTEC s total assets of R4 435 661 were transferred to the
CHE.
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NOTES FOR THE FI NANCI AL YEAR ENDED 31 NMARCH 2002

Property and equi prent
Cost

Onmned assets
Conput er equi pnent
dfice equi pnent
Furniture and fittings

Accunul at ed depreci ation

Onned assets
Conput er equi pnent
dfice equi pnent
Furniture and fittings

Net book val ue

Onned assets
Conput er equi pnent
dfice equi pnent
Furniture and fittings

Nett book val ue
Qpeni ng bal ance
Addi tions
Depreci ati on

2001/ 02 2000/ 01
R R
347 532 115 544
59 547 33 283
113 566 80 722
520 645 229 549
64 537 12 534
11 117 1 614
10 571 549
86 225 14 697
282 995 103 010
48 430 31 669
102 995 80 173
434 420 214 852
Conput er afice Furniture Tata
equi p- equi p- and
ment ment fittings
R R R R
105 564 29 114 80 174 214 852
229 434 28 819 32 843 291 096
52 003 9 503 10 022 71 528
282 995 48 430 102 995 434 420
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NOTES FOR THE FI NANCI AL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

2001/ 02 2000/ 01
R R
5 Account s recei vabl e
Trade debtors 16 435 20 390
16 435 20 390
6 Qperating surpl us
Qperating surplus is stated after
taking the followng into account:
Auditor's renunerati on 33 070 20 132
Depreci ation of equi pnent 71 528 14 544
- conput er equi pnent 52 003 12 381
- office equi pnent 9 503 1 614
- funitue 10 022 549
Orectors' enol unents 1 208 620 536 424
- services as directors 111 700 0
- nanagerial services 1 096 920 536 424
7 Net finance i ncomne
Interest received 519 044 298 742
519 044 298 742
8 Cash generated by operations
perating i ncong/ (| oss) (2 769 983) 1 750 272
Adj ustnent for:
- depreciation 71 528 14 544
erating profit before working capital
changes (2 698 455) 1 764 816
Decrease/ (1 ncrease) in accounts
recei vabl e 3 955 (20 390)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payabl e 5 817 826 (352 860)
Gash (utilised)/generated by operations 3 123 326 1 391 566

103



104

COUNCIL ON HIGHER EDUCATION ANNUAL REPORT 2000/2001

NOTES FOR THE FI NANCI AL YEAR ENDED 31 NMARCH 2002

2001/ 02 2000/ 01
R R
9 Cash and cash equi val ents
Short terminvest nents 11 978 057 4 069 738
Cash and cash equival ents 141 197 262 581
12 119 254 4 332 319
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